
City of Alvin, Texas 
Paul Horn, Mayor 

 
Adam Arendell, Mayor Pro-tem, District B Keith Thompson, District C 
Brad Richards, At Large Position 1 Roger E. Stuksa, District D 
Terry Droege, At Large Position 2 Gabe Adame, District E 
Scott Reed, District A  

 
 

ALVIN CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  
THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 17, 2015 
7:00 P.M. - REGULAR MEETING  

(Downstairs Conference Room) 
 

Alvin City Hall, 216 West Sealy, Alvin, Texas 77511 
Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting that will require special services please contact the City Clerk’s Office at 281-388-4255 or 
droberts@cityofalvin.com 48 hours prior to the meeting time.  City Hall is wheel chair accessible and a sloped curb entry is available at the east and 
west entrances to City Hall.  
 

 

NOTICE is hereby given of a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, to 
be held on Thursday, September 17, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. in the Downstairs Conference Room at: 
City Hall, 216 W. Sealy, Alvin, Texas. 
 

AGENDA  
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. Approve minutes of the August 27, 2015 City Council workshop meeting. 
 

B. Approve minutes of the September 3, 2015 City Council workshop meeting. 
 

C. Approve minutes of the September 3, 2015 City Council regular meeting.  
 

4. PETITIONS OR REQUESTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 

5. REPORTS FROM CITIZENS BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, AND COMMITTEES 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS (NONE) 
 

7. CONSENT AGENDA: CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: An item(s) may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda for full discussion by the request of a member of Council. 

 
A. Consider street closure request for Alvin Fire Department’s Open House on September 

26, 2015 from 8:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m.  Streets requested for closure include: W. House 
Street at S. Taylor Street and W. House Street at S. Hood Street. 
 

B. Consider street closure request for Alvin High School’s Homecoming parade on 
September 28, 2015 from 4:30 p.m. – 6:00 p.m. or an alternate date due to inclement 
weather. Streets requested for closure include: College from West Dumble to West 
Stadium, West Stadium from College to South Johnson, South Johnson from West 
Stadium to West Adoue, West Adoue from South Johnson to South Second 



AGENDA - 2 -                    September 17, 2015 
 

(Yellowjacket Drive), and South Second (Yellowjacket Drive) from West Adoue to the 
parking lot of Alvin Memorial Stadium. 

 
C. Consider street closure request for the annual Blue Santa fundraising event on October 

18, 2015 from 6:30 a.m. – 3:30 p.m. at National Oak Park.  Streets requested for closure 
include:  E. Sidnor St. at Depot Centre Blvd, E. Sidnor St. at S. Magnolia St., E. Sealy St. 
at Depot Centre Blvd, Depot Centre parking lot east side exit, Depot Centre at north exit 
of Parking Lot. 

 
8. MATTERS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA  

  
9. OTHER BUSINESS:   

Council may approve, discuss, refer, or postpone items under Other Business. 
 

A. Consider Ordinance 15-N, establishing a no parking zone along the north side of Stadium 
Drive between Dover Circle and College Drive; authorizing staff to provide appropriate 
signage; providing for a penalty and publication; and setting forth other provisions related 
thereto; second reading. 

 
B. Consider Ordinance 15-U amending Chapter 25, Water and Sewers; by amending Article 

IX, Storm Water Quality; providing for a penalty; and setting forth other provisions 
related thereto; first reading.  
 

C. Consider award of bid to Comfort Systems USA (South Central) Inc., for Heating, 
Venting and Air Conditioning (HVAC) preventative maintenance and repair services of 
city facilities, and approve a (1) one year contract, with (3) three optional (1) one year 
renewals; and authorize the City Manager to sign.  
 

D. Consider Interlocal Agreement with Brazoria County for the FY16 Asphalt Improvement 
Project; and authorize the Mayor to sign. 

 
E. Consider Windstorm Renewal Proposal option #1 from Victor O. Schinnerer & 

Company, Inc. in an amount not to exceed $147,350 for the City’s windstorm and hail 
coverage for FY16; and authorize the City Manager to sign the Proposal Acceptance 
Form. 
 

10. REPORTS FROM CITY MANAGER 
  

A. Review preliminary list of items for the Council meeting of October 1, 2015. 
 

B. Items of Community Interest. 
 
11. REPORTS FROM COUNCIL MEMBERS 

Pursuant to S.B. No. 1182, City Council Members may make a report or an announcement about items of community interest 
during a meeting of the governing body. No action will be taken or discussed. 

 
A. Announcements and requests from Council members.  

 
12. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 



AGENDA - 3 -                    September 17, 2015 
 
I hereby certify that a copy of this notice was posted on the City Hall bulletin board, a place convenient and readily 
accessible to the general public at all times, and to the City’s website: www.alvin-tx.gov, in compliance with Chapter 
551, Texas Government Code on THURSDAY, September 10, 2015 at 6:00 p.m. 
 

(SEAL)       __________________________________ 
       Dixie Roberts, City Clerk 
 

 

Removal Date:______________________ 
 

** All meetings of the City Council are open to the public, except when there is a necessity to meet in Executive Session 
(closed to the public) under the provisions of Chapter 551, Texas Government Code. The Council reserves the right to 
convene into executive session on any of the above posted agenda items that qualify for an executive session by publicly 
announcing the applicable section of the Open Meetings Act, including but not limited to sections 551.071 (litigation and 
certain consultation with the attorney), 551.072 (acquisition of interest in real property), 551.073 (contract for gift to city), 
551.074 (certain personnel deliberations), or 551.087 (qualifying economic development negotiations). 

 



MINUTES 
CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 
216 W. SEALY STREET 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
THURSDAY AUGUST 27, 2015 

7:00 P.M.  
 

CALL TO ORDER 
BE IT REMEMBERED that, on the above date, the City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, met in 
a Special Session at 7:00 P.M. in the Downstairs Conference Room at City Hall, with the following 
members present: Mayor Paul A. Horn, Mayor Pro-tem Adam Arendell; Council members: Terry 
Droege, Roger Stuksa and Keith Thompson.  
 
Staff members present: Sereniah Breland, City Manager; Junru Roland, Chief Financial Officer; 
and Dixie Roberts, City Clerk. 

 
INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Mayor Horn gave the Invocation. 
 
Council member Arendell led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Council member Thompson led the Pledge to the Texas Flag. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
Public hearing to receive comment on the proposed tax rate of $0.8386 per $100 of valuation, a rate 
that will increase the total tax revenues from properties on the tax roll in the preceding year by 
7.53%. 
Mayor Horn opened the public hearing at 7:02 p.m. 
 
No comments were given.   

 
Mayor Horn closed the public hearing at 7:02 p.m. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 
Announce that the City Council is scheduled to vote on the first reading of the proposed tax rate 
ordinance at the regular City Council meeting on Thursday, September 3, 2015 at 7:00 p.m.  
Mayor Horn announced that the City Council is scheduled to vote on the first reading of the 
proposed tax rate ordinance at the regular City Council meeting on Thursday, September 3, 2015 at 
7:00 p.m. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
Council member Thompson moved to adjourn the special meeting at 7:03 p.m. Seconded by 
Council member Droege; motion to adjourn carried on a vote of 4 Ayes. 
 

  

PASSED and APPROVED this ______ day of ________________, 2015. 
 
        __________________________  
          Paul A. Horn, Mayor  
ATTEST: _______________________  
                  Dixie Roberts, City Clerk 



MINUTES 
CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 
216 W. SEALY STREET 

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP  
THURSDAY SEPTEMBER 3, 2015 

6:00 P.M. 
CALL TO ORDER 
BE IT REMEMBERED that, on the above date, the City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, met 
in Workshop Session at 6:00 P.M. in the Downstairs Conference Room at City Hall, with the 
following members present: Mayor Paul A. Horn, Mayor Pro-tem Adam Arendell, 
Councilmembers: Gabe Adame, Terry Droege, Brad Richards, Scott Reed, Roger Stuksa, and 
Keith Thompson.   
 
Staff members present:  Sereniah Breland, City Manager; Junru Roland, CFO; Dixie Roberts, 
City Clerk; Larry Buehler, Economic Development Director; Robert Lee, Police Chief.  

 
WORKSHOP 
 
Discuss Zoning. 
John J. Hightower and David W. Olson, legal counsel from Olson and Olson, L.L.P. gave a brief 
presentation to City Council regarding zoning issues and the steps in which to create a zoning 
ordinance.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Council member Thompson moved to adjourn the meeting at 6:50 p.m. Seconded by Council 
member Arendell; motion to adjourn carried on a vote of 7 Ayes.  

 
PASSED and APPROVED this ______ day of ________________, 2015. 
 
 
        __________________________  
          Paul A. Horn, Mayor  
 
 
ATTEST: ___________________________  
                  Dixie Roberts, City Clerk 



MINUTES 
CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 
216 W. SEALY STREET 

REGULAR SESSION  
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 3, 2015 
7:00 P.M. 

 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
BE IT REMEMBERED that, on the above date, the City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, met in 
a Regular Session at 7:00 P.M. in the Downstairs Conference Room at City Hall, with the following 
members present: Mayor Paul A. Horn, Mayor Pro-tem Adam Arendell; Council members: Gabe 
Adame, Terry Droege, Scott Reed, Brad Richards, Roger Stuksa and Keith Thompson.  
 
Staff members present: Sereniah Breland, City Manager; Bobbi Kacz, City Attorney; Junru Roland, 
Chief Financial Officer; Dixie Roberts, City Clerk; Robert E. Lee, Police Chief; Brian Smith, 
Public Services Director; Dan Kelinske, Parks & Recreation Director; Larry Buehler, Economic 
Development Director. 

 
INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Mr. Buehler gave the invocation.   
 

 Council member Arendell led the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag. 
 
 Council member Reed led the Pledge to the Texas Flag. 

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Approve minutes of the August 13, 2015 City Council workshop meeting. 
Council member Droege moved to approve the minutes of the August 13, 2015 City Council 
workshop meeting.  Seconded by Council member Arendell; motion to approve carried on a vote of 
7 Ayes. 

 

Approve minutes of the August 20, 2015 City Council workshop meeting. 
Council member Adame moved to approve the minutes of the August 20, 2015 City Council 
workshop meeting.  Seconded by Council member Arendell; motion to approve carried on a vote of 
7 Ayes. 

 
 

Approve minutes of the August 20, 2015 City Council regular meeting.  
Council member Stuksa moved to approve the minutes of the August 20, 2015 City Council regular 
meeting.  Seconded by Council member Arendell; motion to approve carried on a vote of a7Ayes. 

 
PETITIONS OR REQUESTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Kathy Mattes and Jerry Pryor of the Alvin Museum Society spoke before City Council thanking them for 
their continued support.  They extended an invitation to City Council to attend the reinstallation of the post 
office mural celebration to be held at the museum on Saturday September 26, 2015 at 1:00 p.m. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 

 



MINUTES - 2 -                     September 3, 2015 
 
Consider Ordinance 15-P, establishing a no parking zone along North Pointe Trails Boulevard 
(located off Highway 35 North); authorizing installation of appropriate signage; providing for a 
penalty and publication; and setting forth other provisions related thereto; second reading. 
Ordinance 15-P establishes a no parking zone along both sides of each lane of North Pointe Trails Boulevard and extending the 
entire length of the roadway. This ordinance is being proposed at the request of the City’s Fire Marshal in response to traffic safety 
complaints received from the North Pointe Trails Subdvision’s Home Owner’s Association due to residents parking along North 
Pointe Trails Boulevard.  Ordinance 15-P unanimously passed on first reading at the 8/20/15 City Council meeting. 

 
Council member Adame moved to approve the consent agenda as presented.  Seconded by Council 
member Arendell; motion to approve carried on a vote of 7 Ayes. 

 
MATTERS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA  
 No items were removed from the consent agenda. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS:   

 

Consider a variance request from Hope Clinic to waive the Site Plan and Drainage Plan requirement 
of Section 21-28; Sidewalks Section 21-42; Non-conforming Structures Section 35-20(b); and 
Building Permit Fees Section 5-4(b) of the Code of Ordinances, for a building addition to their 
nonprofit dental clinic located at 3373 E. Highway 6. 
The Engineering Department received a variance request letter from Mr. Jody Schibi on behalf of Hope Dental Clinic located at 
3373 E. Highway 6.  The Clinic would like to add a 16’ X 70’ medical modular building to their existing modular facility to allow for 
more office and training space.  In order to make this addition feasible, the Clinic has requested variances to four sections of the City 
Code of Ordinances, Section 21-28 Site Plans and Drainage Plan; Section 21-42 Sidewalks; Section 35-20 (b)(1) Nonconforming 
Structures (building façade requirements), and Section 5-4 (b) Building Permit Fees.  Mr. Schibi presented this request, on behalf of 
Hope Clinic, to the Planning Commission on August 18, 2015.  In addition to the request, Mr. Schibi spoke about Hope Clinic and 
how they provide low cost dental care to residents of Alvin and the surrounding communities.  Hope Clinic’s future plans for a 
permanent site built building versus a modular building were also discussed at length.  Mr. Schibi stated that the Clinic would like to 
build a building in the future, but that no timeframe had been established by the Clinic in which to do so.  The Commission also 
discussed that construction of a sidewalk across the front of the property would serve no purpose at this time since there are no 
sidewalks in the area and that putting a brick façade on the front portion of the new building would only make it look out of place.  
The Planning Commission unanimously approved the variances as requested. 
 
Ms. Breland stated that this item went before the Planning Commission and involved a detailed 
conversation.  Requests:  1) waiver of the required engineered site plan; staff concurs.  2) Waiver of 
sidewalks at this location.  Staff will bring a sidewalk master plan before the Planning Commission 
and ultimately City Council prescribing best use of sidewalks within the community.  Staff requests 
to postpone the waiving of the sidewalk requirement until after the plan is submitted and voted on 
by City Council.  3)  Exception to the façade requirement.  The intent of Section 35-20(b) was to 
require the installation of a façade for visible storefronts of new buildings.  Hope Clinic is 
requesting to place a modular building behind their current building, and requests that the 
installation of a façade not be required; staff concurs.  4) Waiving of permit fees; staff concurs. 
 
Council member Reed thanked Mr. Schibi for the information provided to City Council.   
 
Mr. Schibi spoke before City Council regarding the requested variances by Hope Clinic. 
 
Council member Stuksa asked about ADA compliance.   
 
Council member Thompson asked if the modular building would be skirted.  Ms. Breland stated 
that it would be skirted and would have decking that would include an ADA ramp.  
 
Council member Stuksa asked if Hope Clinic would be required to adhere to the rules and 
regulations set out in the building code.  Ms. Breland stated that they would.   



MINUTES - 3 -                     September 3, 2015 
 
 
Council member Reed moved to approve the variance request from Hope Clinic to waive the Site 
Plan and Drainage Plan requirement of Section 21-28, City Council finds that there are no special 
conditions necessary for the variance.  Seconded by Council member Arendell; motion to approve 
carried on a vote of 7 Ayes. 
 
Council member Thompson moved to postpone the installation of a sidewalk required by Section 
21-42 until a sidewalk master plan is presented and voted on by City Council.  Seconded by 
Council member Richards; motion to approve carried on a vote of 7 Ayes. 
 
Council member Stuksa moved to approve the variance for the Non-conforming Structures Section 
35-20(b); and Building Permit Fees Section 5-4(b) of the Code of Ordinances, for a building 
addition to their nonprofit dental clinic located at 3373 E. Highway 6.  Seconded by Council 
member Arendell; motion to approve carried on a vote of 7Ayes. 
 
Consider Ordinance 15-R, adopting the budget for the City of Alvin, Texas for Fiscal Year 2015-
2016; directing the City Clerk to post a copy of the budget on the City of Alvin website; and setting 
forth other provisions related thereto; first reading. 
On August 6, 2015 the City Manager presented the FY 2015-16 proposed budget to City Council.  A budget workshop was held on 
August 13, 2015, whereby City Council and staff reviewed the proposed budget.  This is first reading of Ordinance 15-R to adopt the 
FY 2015-16 annual budget.  Second reading of this ordinance will take place at a special City Council meeting scheduled for 
Thursday, September 10, 2015 at 7:00 p.m.  State law and the City's Charter require that the City enact an annual budget.  The City 
Charter requires that an ordinance to establish appropriation must be approved by a favorable vote of a majority of the members of 
the City Council.   
 

Below are the adjustments to be made within the proposed budget: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Council member Arendell moved to approve Ordinance 15-R, adopting the budget for the City of 
Alvin, Texas for Fiscal Year 2015-2016; directing the City Clerk to post a copy of the budget on the 
City of Alvin website; and setting forth other provisions related thereto; first reading.  Seconded by 
Council member Thompson; motion to approve carried on a vote of 7Ayes. 
 
Consider Ordinance 15-S, levying a property tax rate for the year 2015 and to direct the Tax 
Assessor-Collector to access, account for, and distribute the property taxes as herein levied; first 
reading. 
This is first reading of Ordinance 15-S, levying the property tax rate for the tax year 2015.  The proposed tax rate is $0.8386 per 
$100/assessed value.  Second reading of this ordinance will take place at a special City Council meeting scheduled for Thursday, 
September 10, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. The City Charter requires that an ordinance be adopted to establish the tax rates for maintenance 
& operation (M&O) and debt service (DS) to fund budget appropriations; and must be approved by a favorable vote of a majority of 
the members of the City Council.   
 



MINUTES - 4 -                     September 3, 2015 
 
Council member Stuksa moved to approve Ordinance 15-S, levying a property tax rate for the year 
2015 and to direct the Tax Assessor-Collector to access, account for, and distribute the property 
taxes as herein levied; first reading.  Seconded by Council member Arendell; motion to approve 
carried on a vote of 7 Ayes. 
 
Consider Ordinance 15-N, establishing no parking zone along both sides of the entire length of 
Briscoe Drive (formerly Nature’s Way) and establishing a no parking zone along the north side of 
Stadium Drive between Dover Circle and College Drive; authorizing staff to provide appropriate 
signage; providing for a penalty and publication; and setting forth other provisions related thereto; 
first reading. 
This ordinance is to establish no parking zones at two different locations: Location 1. Briscoe Drive -  the entire length of Briscoe 
Drive along both sides of each lane.  The no parking zone will be marked as solid red lines with white stenciled “NO PARKING” 
lettering evenly spaced throughout.  Location 2. Stadium Drive – North side of Stadium drive between Dover Circle and College 
Drive.  The no parking zone will be marked as a solid red line with white stenciled “NO PARKING” lettering evenly spaced 
throughout and three “No Parking” signs will be installed.  The total estimated cost for the signs being $240.  Fire marshal made 
this recommendation.   
 

Lengthy discussion was had.  Council asked that no parking along Briscoe Drive be removed from 
the ordinance and that a no parking zone be established along the north side of Stadium Drive 
between Dover Circle and College Drive.  The ordinance will be amended to reflect the changes for 
second reading.  Council discussed the need for additional parking in this area. 
 
Council member Stuksa moved to approve Ordinance 15-N, establishing no parking zone along the 
north side of Stadium Drive between Dover Circle and College Drive; authorizing staff to provide 
appropriate signage; providing for a penalty and publication; and setting forth other provisions 
related thereto; first reading.  Seconded by Council member Thompson; motion to approve carried 
on a vote of 7 Ayes. 

 
Consider a final plat for Achille Estates, being a subdivision of 2.50 acres (located along CR 529 
near Cardinal Drive) out of tracts 48 and 29 of the Wellman Subdivision in section 25, A.C.H. & B. 
Company Survey, abstract 412, Brazoria County, Texas according to the plat as recorded in volume 
8, page 622, Deed Records, Brazoria County, Texas.   
On August 3, 2015 the Engineering Department received the Final Plat for Achille Estates for review. Mr. Achille is proposing  to 
subdivide two lots totaling 2.5 acres from his 108 acres of undeveloped property located off of County Road 529 near Cardinal Drive  
in the Alvin ETJ. Mr. Achille plans to sell the two newly created lots.  The City Planning Commission, after proper consideration, 
unanimously approved the plat at their meeting on August 18, 2015. 
 

Council member Reed moved to approve a final plat for Achille Estates, being a subdivision of 2.50 
acres (located along CR 529 near Cardinal Drive) out of tracts 48 and 29 of the Wellman 
Subdivision in section 25, A.C.H. & B. Company Survey, abstract 412, Brazoria County, Texas 
according to the plat as recorded in volume 8, page 622, Deed Records, Brazoria County, Texas.  
Seconded by Council member Adame; motion to approve carried on a vote of 7 Ayes. 
 
Consider a final plat for Page Estates a 0.425 acre tract of land (northwest corner of W. House 
Street and Hardee Street) being all of lots 1 and 2 and part of lots 3 and 4, block 6 of Disney’s 
Addition to Alvin No. 1, according to the plat as recorded in volume 5, page 46, Deed Records, 
Brazoria County, Texas and with consideration of variances to the City’s Code of Ordinances 
Section 21-37(a) Setback and Section 21-37(b) Lot Size. 
On August 3, 2015 the Engineering Department received the Final Plat for Page Estates for review. This subdivision consists of 
three lots containing two existing single-family homes and one existing commercial building. Mr. and Mrs. Page wish to subdivide 
the property in order to sell each structure separately.  The proposed lot configuration would allow each structure to function 
independently as stand alone properties. In an effort to meet the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance, variances to lot width, 
lot area, and building setback are required and have been requested. Lot 1 contains a commercial building that does not meet the 
current front, side, and back building setback requirements. Lot 2 contains a single-family residence that does not meet the current 



MINUTES - 5 -                     September 3, 2015 
 
front and side building setback requirements. It also does not meet the minimum 7,000 square foot lot area requirement. Lot 3 
contains a single-family residence that does not meet the current front building setback requirement, the 7,000 square foot lot area 
requirement, or the 60’ lot width requirement. Future structural additions or buildings proposed on any of the three lots will be 
required to meet the building setbacks in effect at that time. The City Planning Commission, after proper consideration, unanimously 
approved the plat at their meeting on August 18, 2015. 
 

Council member Thompson moved to approve a final plat for Page Estates a 0.425 acre tract of land 
(northwest corner of W. House Street and Hardee Street) being all of lots 1 and 2 and part of lots 3 
and 4, block 6 of Disney’s Addition to Alvin No. 1, according to the plat as recorded in volume 5, 
page 46, Deed Records, Brazoria County, Texas and with consideration of variances to the City’s 
Code of Ordinances Section 21-37(a) Setback and Section 21-37(b) Lot Size.  Seconded by Council 
member Droege; motion to approve carried on a vote of 7 Ayes. 

 
Acknowledge receipt of the 2014 tax year Annual Report for Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone 
Number Two City of Alvin (Kendall Lakes TIRZ). 
The Kendall Lakes Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone (TIRZ) Board of Directors received and approved the Annual Report at their 
meeting on August 4, 2015. The Kendall Lakes TIRZ consists of approximately 541 acres.  The Zone was created to capture the great 
potential the property has due to its location by partnering with the developer to reimburse the infrastructure necessary to support 
commercial and residential development.  The Zone was created for 30-year duration.  The Project Plan was amended in 2009 to 
revise land uses and project descriptions and to update various revenue and budget schedules for the Plan.  The City’s Economic 
Development department is utilizing the revised land plan to market and attract commercial and industrial uses as the highest and 
best use in the southernmost portion of the Zone.  The 2004 base year value was $286,780.  The 2014 appraised value of the zone is 
$19,692,416.  This represents an increase of $7,406,900, a 36.7% increase over the 2013 appraised value.  This year’s highlighted 
activities include the TIRZ board authorization to reimburse the developer for approximately $103,000 of new recreational amenities 
on the designated recreation tract inside Kendall Lakes.  This includes a multi-use play structure and a walking trail.  This report 
must also be received by City Council and sent to the Texas Comptroller and the Texas Office of Attorney General. 
 

Council member Arendell moved to approve receipt of the 2014 tax year Annual Report for Tax 
Increment Reinvestment Zone Number Two City of Alvin (Kendall Lakes TIRZ).  Seconded by 
Council member Droege; motion to approve carried on a vote of 7 Ayes. 

 
Consider Addendum No. 3 for a one (1) year agreement renewal with American Janitorial Services 
for janitorial services of City facilities for an amount of $61,680.00; and authorize the City Manager 
to sign. 
City owned facilities receiving routine janitorial services include: City Hall +/- 16,277 sq.ft. 4 days / week, Public Services Facility 
+/- 8,671 sq.ft. 4 days per week, Library +/- 18,164 sq.ft 6 days per week, Senior Citizen Center +/- 10,000 sq.ft 5 days per week, 
Museum +/- 7,000 sq.ft 2 days per month, Alvin Convention and Visitor’s Bureau Office/Train Depot +/- 1,482 sq.ft. 2 days per 
week, Portable Restroom (for scheduled events).  Other City owned facilities receiving “as needed” janitorial services include: Bob 
Briscoe Park restrooms, Lions Park restrooms, Pearson Park restrooms, Bob Owen Pool restrooms, Morgan Park restrooms and 
recently adding the Girl Scout house, which hosts numerous recreational programs offered through the Alvin Parks and Recreation 
department. The original agreement was approved on September 5, 2012.  This request is for the third and final renewal allowed 
under the terms of the agreement.  American Janitorial has not requested a price increase from the original agreement pricing of 
$57,780, (except for the 2013 Addendum when additional office space at the Public Service Facility was added for an additional 
amount of $325 per month, totaling $3,900 annually.)   

 

Council member Reed moved to approve Addendum No. 3 for a one (1) year agreement renewal 
with American Janitorial Services for janitorial services of City facilities for an amount of 
$61,680.00; and authorize the City Manager to sign.  Seconded by Council member Richards; 
motion to approve carried on a vote of 7 Ayes. 

 
Consider Addendum No. 1 for a one (1) year agreement renewal with De Leon & Son Lawn 
Services, Company for manicured mowing services of various city owned properties in an amount 
not to exceed $101,085.00; and authorize the City Manager to sign. 
The original agreement was approved September 4, 2014 in the amount of $101,085.00 utilizing the public bid process.  This 
renewal would be the first of four annual renewals allowed under the terms of the agreement.  DeLeon & Son provides the 
manicured mowing services for the following city owned properties:  Lift Stations 23B,14,29,30,31,33; water wells #3,4,6,7,8 and 
three water towers; City Hall, Lot at W. Willis St. and Hardie St., Library, Senior Citizens Center, Museum, Public Services Facility, 
Alvin Animal Adoption Center, Alvin Police Department, Bob S. Owen Pool, Girl Scout House Lot, American Legion Lot, Fire 



MINUTES - 6 -                     September 3, 2015 
 
Stations #1 (w/ overflow parking lot), #2 and #3, EMS Station, Fire Training Field, Dyche Lane Property, Lot at N. Gordon St. and 
W. Willis St., ACVB Grounds/Train Depot; North & South bound entrance sign area on Bypass 35, two “Welcome to Alvin” signs 
along Highway 6; Ruben Adame Park, Newman Park, Citizens Park, Sealy Park, Prairie Dog Park and Oak Park Cemetery.  
 

Council member Reed moved to approve Addendum No. 1 for a one (1) year agreement renewal 
with De Leon & Son Lawn Services, Company for manicured mowing services of various city 
owned properties in an amount not to exceed $101,085.00; and authorize the City Manager to sign.  
Seconded by Council member Droege; motion to approve carried on a vote of 7 Ayes. 

 
Consider Addendum No. 2 for a (1) one year agreement renewal with LTS Lawncare for lawn 
maintenance services of selected City owned parkland in an amount not to exceed $32,227.91; and 
authorize the City Manager to sign. 
In February, 2014 City Council awarded the lawn maintenance services bid to LTS Lawncare.  The term of the initial agreement was 
from March 1, 2014 thru September 30, 2014, with the option for a maximum of four (4) annual renewals.   Staff is requesting City 
Council to consider a one year renewal.  This renewal would be the second of four annual renewals allowed under the terms of the 
agreement.  LTS Lawncare has not requested a price increase from the original pricing of $32,227.87.  The scope of work will 
consist of LTS Lawncare mowing the Hike and Bike Trail; Pearson, Morgan, Hugh Adams, Marina, and Talmadge Parks bi-weekly 
from September 2015 thru February, 2016; and weekly from March, 2016 thru August, 2016.  With every mowing, weed-eating will 
be done around all buildings, trees, shrubs, posts, tire stops, etc.  In addition, prior to events where heavy public usage of the 
selected parks is anticipated, LTS Lawncare will provide mowing/trimming services as needed. 

 
Council member Droege moved to approve Addendum No. 2 for a (1) one year agreement renewal 
with LTS Lawncare for lawn maintenance services of selected City owned parkland in an amount 
not to exceed $32,227.91; and authorize the City Manager to sign.  Seconded by Council member 
Reed motion; to approve carried on a vote of 7 Ayes. 

 
Consider proposal with T.F. Harper and Associates L.P. for the construction of a picnic pavilion at 
Talmadge Park in an amount not to exceed $29,906.00; and authorize City Manager to sign.   
This is a construction agreement in the amount of $29,906.00 to T.F. Harper, a Houston Galveston Area Council (HGAC) Buy 
Board approved company, for the construction of a 20’x30’ picnic pavilion funded in part by a Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) in the amount of $13,973.00 and the remainder funded from the Park Dedication Fund in the amount of $15,933.00. 
Due to a sharp and unexpected rise in construction costs coupled with limited interest from the pool of potential vendors, the pricing 
received from was higer than expected, thus supplementing from Park Dedication funds, derived from developer fees, is necessary to 
complete this project.  Staff originally requested quotes from the two below listed companies, and recognized that T.F. Harper has 
been preselected by HGAC Buy Board and was able to offer a lower price. 

 
Other pricing received:  
Kraftsman   $39,970.75 
R.J. Harris Construction $44,822.00 

 
Council member Stuksa moved to approve a proposal with T.F. Harper and Associates L.P. for the 
construction of a picnic pavilion at Talmadge Park in an amount not to exceed $29,906.00; and 
authorize City Manager to sign.  Seconded by Council member Arendell; motion to approve carried 
on a vote of 7 Ayes. 
 
Consider an agreement with Clear the Air Cooling and Heating for the Heating Venting and Air 
Conditioning removal and installation at the Senior Center in an amount not to exceed $15,194.00; 
and authorize City Manager to sign. 
In tandem with the flat roof replacement project at the Senior Center, three rooftop Heating Venting and Air Conditioning (HVAC) 
package units (which are self contained heating & cooling units) and one stand alone HVAC condensing unit located within the flat 
roof area of replacement will need to be removed in order to perform the roof replacement.  After the flat roof has been replaced, 
these units will need to be re-installed.  However, two of the three package units have been previously replaced, one in 2012 and the 
other in 2013, respectively, due to un-repairable failure(s).  The third package unit has a manufacture date of 1997 and is 
recommended to be replaced as it has reached its recommended life expectancy.  The stand alone HVAC condensing unit will be 
reinstalled.  Staff recommends utilizing Clear the Air to perform the necessary HVAC work and provide the replacement 4 ton Trane 
package unit.  The scope of this project includes removal of units, installation of 2 new curb assemblies, relocation of duct work, 
rebuild curb on west unit, reinstall the condensing unit, reinstall 2 existing package units, and replace one package unit with new 
unit. Clear the Air will warranty for a period of one year from the date of installation and after the first year, the equipment 



MINUTES - 7 -                     September 3, 2015 
 
manufacturers warranty will be for a period of 5 years. Clear the Air currently holds the City’s HVAC maintenance & repair 
contract which expires 10/9/2015.  Clear the Air proposal price: $15,194.00. 
 

Council member Thompson moved to approve an agreement with Clear the Air Cooling and 
Heating for the Heating Venting and Air Conditioning removal and installation at the Senior Center 
in an amount not to exceed $15,194.00; and authorize City Manager to sign.  Seconded by Council 
member Stuksa; motion to approve carried on a vote of 7 Ayes. 

 
Consider proposal from Garland/DBS, Inc. to replace the flat roof portion and repair to standing 
seam roof at the Alvin Senior Center in an amount not to exceed $32,733.00; and authorize City 
Manager to approve the purchase order for this expenditure. 
A water leak in the Senior Center located below an area of the flat roof prompted a core sample of the flat roof.  The core sample 
revealed moisture saturation and overall deteriortion of the flat roof.  In addition, it was discovered that one of the standing seam 
panels had slipped out of place, exposing a portion of the wooden deck.  As a result, staff is recommending that City Council approve 
the proposal from Garland/DBS, Inc (a member of the cooperative purchasing network US Communities) to replace the flat roof 
portion and repair to the standing seam roof.  Garland/DBS, Inc was selected because of their history of quality turn key roofing 
replacement and repair projects on other City of Alvin facilities. Apollo Construction installed the standing seam roof at the Senior 
Citizens Center in the summer of 1999. 
 
No action was taken on this item.   
 
REPORTS FROM CITY MANAGER 
Review preliminary list of items for the Council meeting of September 17, 2015. 
Ms. Breland reviewed the preliminary list for September 17, 2015 City Council Meeting. 
 
Items of Community Interest 
Mrs. Roberts reviewed items of community interest. 
 
REPORTS FROM COUNCIL MEMBERS 
Pursuant to S.B. No. 1182, City Council Members may make a report or an announcement about items of community interest during 
a meeting of the governing body.  No action will be taken or discussed. 
 
Council member Thompson thanked Chief Lee and the Police Department for their service.   
 
Council member Reed wished Chief Lee a happy birthday.  He also thanked the first responders for 
their service.   
 
Council member Arendell asked for a Code update for 709 E. Hwy 6.  He also wished Chief Lee a 
happy birthday. 
 
Council member Richards wished Chief Lee a happy birthday. 
 
Council member Droege also wished Chief Lee a happy belated birthday. 
 
Council member Adame wished Chief Sunshine a happy birthday. 
 
Council member Stuksa wished Chief Lee a happy birthday.  
 
Mayor Horn asked that a workshop be set up to discuss the thoroughfare plan. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 



MINUTES - 8 -                     September 3, 2015 
 
Council member Arendell moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:09 p.m. Seconded by Councilmember 
Adame; motion to adjourn carried on a vote of 7 Ayes.  
 
 
 
PASSED and APPROVED this ______ day of ________________, 2015. 

 
 

        __________________________  
                    Paul A. Horn, Mayor  
 

ATTEST: ___________________________  
                       Dixie Roberts, City Clerk 

 



MINUTES 
CITY OF ALVIN 

BUILDING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS AND APPEALS 
MAY 18, 2015 

 
 
1. Call to Order. 

The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. Board members Santos Garza, Martin Vela,  
and James Thompson  were present in the First Floor Conference Room at the City of Alvin 
Public Service Facility, 1100 W. Highway 6. Also attending was Building Official Mike 
Collins, Plans Examiner Roy Sosa, and Mike representing A & L Communications. 

 
2. Reports or Requests from the Public. 
 No reports or requests from the public. 
 
3. Approval of Minutes for March 16, 2015 

Motion to approve minutes was made by Martin Vela and seconded by James Thompson. 
Motion passed unanimously. 

 
4. Consider a request from A & L Communications for a special use permit concerning 

additional wall signage located at 2625 South Loop 35, Suite 200: 
  Section 17 ½ -38. Signs on general rights-of-way. 

(1)Wall Signs – Size and Number 
Roy Sosa explained A & L Communications is only allowed one wall sign. In order to have 
more view from the public they are requesting an additional three signs. The board viewed 
the photos provided, discussed the sign ordinance and the special use permit for three 
additional wall signs. Martin Vela made a motion to approve the special use permit and it 
was seconded by Santos Garza. The motion passed unanimously. 

 
5. Reports or requests from Board Members 

Martin Vela asked if the City of Alvin has an ordinance regarding the LED signs.  Roy Sosa 
responded that we have where signs are put in a window, but not lights. The lights cannot be 
flashing or distracting because the PD has called us on some. If they have signage in the 
window it takes away from the 10% that is allowed on the exterior. Martin Vela stated the 
Tax office in the same shopping center has excessive signage on the building and in windows 
all year long. 

 
6. Adjourn Meeting. 
 Martin Vela motioned to adjourn the meeting and James Thompson seconded the motion. 

The motion passed unanimously. The meeting ended at 6:35 p.m. 



De
 
Ag

 

Typ

 
Sum
Sep
outr
serv
as f
 

 

 
 
Sup

 
Re

 
 

Re
Re

 

Fu

Bu

Ac

Le

 

 

epartment:

genda Item

pe of Item:

mmary:   T
ptember 26, 
reach progra
vice agencie
free food and

pporting d
 AVFD S

 

ecommend

eviewed by De
eviewed by Ci

unding Exp

udgeted Ite

ccount Num

egal Review

: Parks a

m:   Consid
26, 20
Street 

  ☐Ordinance

This street cl
2015 at Fir

am to raise a
s will be on 
d fun activiti

ocuments
Street Closur

dation:   M

epartment He
ity Attorney, if

pected: R

em: Yes ☐

mber:  

w Required

Age

and Recreati

der street clo
15 from 8:0
at S. Taylor 

e 1st Reading ☐

osure is an e
re Station 1
awareness ab
hand displa

ies for comm

attached: 
re Request M

Move to appro

ead, if applica
f applicable ☐

Revenue ☐

☐  No ☐

d: N/A ☒

enda 

Meetin

ion 

osure reques
00 a.m. to 3
Street and W

☐ Ordinance 

effort to sup
 located at 

bout fire pre
aying equipm
munity memb

 
Map 

ove street clo

able ☒ 
☐ 

☐  Expen

☐  N/A

  Requ

 

 Com
 

ng Date:   9

st for Alvin 
:00 p.m.  S

W. House Str

2nd Reading ☐

pport the Alv
302 W. Ho
vention and 

ment, providi
bers of all ag

 

osure reques

 Revie
 Revie

nditure ☐

☒

uired ☐

mmen

9/17/2015 

Contact:

n Fire Depar
Streets reque
treet at S. Ho

☐Resolution ☐

vin Fire Dep
ouse Street.
d fire safety. 
ing informat
ges. 

st for the Alv

ewed by Chie
ewed by City 

 N/A ☒

Amount 

Date Com

ntary

Dan Kelins

rtment’s Ope
ested for clo
ood Street. 

☐ Public Hearin

partment’s an
This annua
Various loc

tion and edu

 
 
 

vin Fire Dep

ef Financial O
Manager ☒ 

☒

No Expendi

mpleted 

y 

ske, Parks &

en House on
osure include

ng ☒ Discussio

nnual fall op
al event is a
cal police an
ucational ma

partment Op

fficer, if applic

iture 

Click here to 

Page 1 of 

& Rec Dir. 

n September
e: W. House

on & Direction

pen house on
a community
d emergency

aterial as wel

en House. 

cable ☐ 

enter a date.

1  

r 
e 

n 
y 
y 
ll 



2015 Alvin Fire Department Open House 

Street Closures—W. House Street @ S. Hood St. 

  W. House Street @ S. Taylor St. 



De
 
Ag

 

Typ

 
Sum
Sep
of o
whi
incl
 

 

 
 
Sup

 
 
Re

 
 

Re
Re

Fu

Bu

Ac

Le

 

epartment:

genda Item

pe of Item:

mmary:   T
ptember 28, 2
our local hig
ich will rem
lement weath

pporting d
 Map of 

ecommend

eviewed by De
eviewed by Ci

 

unding Exp

udgeted Ite

ccount Num

egal Review

: Parks a

m:   Consid
Septem
weathe
Stadium
Stadium
Drive)
Alvin M

  ☐Ordinance

This street 
2015.  This 

gh school.  A
main in place

her, AISD re

ocuments
parade route

dation:   M
pa
w

epartment He
ity Attorney, if

pected: R

em: Yes ☐

mber:  

w Required

Age

and Recreati

der street c
mber 28, 20
er. Streets r
m, West St
m to West A
, and South 
Memorial St

e 1st Reading ☐

closure is a
annual para

Alvin Parks D
e throughout
equests appr

attached: 
e  

Move to appr
arade and a
eather, if ne

ead, if applica
f applicable ☒

Revenue ☐

☐  No ☐

d: N/A ☒

enda 

Meetin

ion 

closure requ
15 from 4:3
requested fo
tadium from

Adoue, West
Second (Ye

tadium. 

☐ Ordinance 

an effort to 
ade raises sch
Department 
t the fall spo
roval of the s

 

rove street 
authorize the
cessary. 

able ☒ 
☒ 

☐  Expen

☐  N/A

  Requ

 

 

 Com
 

ng Date:   9

uest for Al
30 p.m. – 6
or closure i
m College t
t Adoue from
ellowjacket 

2nd Reading ☐

support the 
hool spirit a
will change

orts season t
street closure

 

closure requ
e Mayor to 

 Revie
 Revie

nditure ☐

☒

uired ☐

mmen

9/17/2015 

Contact:

lvin High 
:00 p.m. or 
include: Col
to South Jo
m South John

Drive) from

☐Resolution ☐

Alvin High
and engages 
e out all stree
then be repl
e for an alter

uest for the 
 approve an

ewed by Chie
ewed by City 

 N/A ☒

Amount 

Date Com

ntary

Dan Kelins

School’s H
an alternate

llege from 
ohnson, Sou
nson to Sout

m West Ado

☐ Public Hearin

h School’s H
our commu
et banners to
laced by hol
rnate date. 

 
 
 

Alvin High
n alternate 

ef Financial O
Manager ☒ 

☒

 

mpleted 

y 

ske, Parks &

Homecoming
e date due t
West Dumb

uth Johnson 
th Second (Y

oue to the pa

ng ☒ Discussio

Homecomin
unity membe
o “Jacket Pr
liday banner

h School H
date due to

fficer, if applic

9/10/2015 

& Rec Dir. 

g parade on
to inclemen
ble to Wes
 from Wes

Yellowjacke
arking lot o

on & Direction

ng parade on
ers in suppor
ride” banner
rs. In case o

omecoming 
o inclement 

cable ☐ 

n 
t 
t 
t 
t 
f 

n 
rt 
s 
f 



ALV

PARAD
L

YELLOW
DR

VIN HIG

E

DE ENTRIES
LEFT ONTO 

WJACKET DR
RIVE, ENDING

GH SC

Event Da

Pa

 WILL LINE U
JOHNSON S

RIVE (SOUTH
G IN THE AL

PLEASE S

CHOOL

ate: Mond

rade Star

PARA

UP ON COLL
STREET, LEF
H SECOND S
LVIN HIGH SC

SEE BELOW FOR

L HOM

day, Septe

rt Time: 5

ADE ROUT

LEGE DRIVE
FT ONTO AD
STREET) PRO
CHOOL FOO

 

R ILLUSTRATE

ECOM

ember 28

5:00 p.m.

TE:  

E, PROCEED
OUE STREE
OCEEDING S

OTBALL STA

ED INSTRUCTIO

MING P

8, 2014  

 

LEFT ON ST
ET, THEN LEF
SOUTH ON Y

ADIUM PARK

ONS: 

ARAD

TADIUM DRIV
FT ONTO 
YELLOWJAC
ING AREA. 

E 

VE, 

CKET 

 



De
 
Ag

 

Typ

 
Sum
even
uses
Sch
toys
gav
 

 

 
 
Sup

 
Re

 
 

Re
Re

Fu

Bu

Ac

Le

 

 

epartment:

genda Item

pe of Item:

mmary:   A
nt held at N
s funds raise

hool District 
s for children

ve a gift card

pporting d
 Blue San

 

ecommend

eviewed by De
eviewed by Ci

 

unding Exp

udgeted Ite

ccount Num

egal Review

: Parks a

m:   Consid
2015 f
include
at Dep
of Park

  ☐Ordinance

Alvin Blue S
ational Oak 

ed from this 
high school
n and food f

d donation to

ocuments
nta Fundrais

dation:   M
O

epartment He
ity Attorney, if

pected: R

em: Yes ☐

mber:  

w Required

Age

and Recreati

der street clo
from 6:30 a
e:  E. Sidnor

pot Centre B
king Lot. 

e 1st Reading ☐

Santa, a non-
Park which 
event for va

l graduates w
for needy fam
 an Alvin fa

attached: 
ser Event Ma

Move to appr
ctober 18, 2

ead, if applica
f applicable ☐

Revenue ☐

☐  No ☐

d: N/A ☒

enda 

Meetin

ion 

osure request
a.m. – 3:30
r St. at Depo

Blvd, Depot C

☐ Ordinance 

-profit organ
includes a m

arious charita
who plan to a
milies. As an
mily who lo

 
ap 

rove street 
015 from 6:3

able ☒ 
☐ 

☐  Expen

☐  N/A

  Requ

 

 Com
 

ng Date:   9

t for the ann
p.m. at Nat

ot Centre Blv
Centre parki

2nd Reading ☐

nization, requ
motorcycle r
able activitie
attend Alvin
n example o

ost their hom

 

closure requ
30 a.m. – 3:3

 Revie
 Revie

nditure ☐

☒

uired ☐

mmen

9/17/2015 

Contact:

nual Blue San
tional Oak P
vd, E. Sidno
ing lot east s

☐Resolution ☐

uests this str
ride through 
es; such as sc
n Community
f their fundr

me to a fire. 

uest for the
30 p.m. at N

ewed by Chie
ewed by City 

 N/A ☒

Amount 

Date Com

ntary

Dan Kelins

nta fundraisi
Park.  Stree
or St. at S. M
side exit, De

☐ Public Hearin

reet closure 
Brazoria Co

cholarships t
ty College, th
raising result

 
 
 

e Blue Santa
National Oak

ef Financial O
Manager ☒ 

☒

 

mpleted 

y 

ske, Parks &

ing event on
ets requested
Magnolia St.,
epot Centre 

ng ☒ Discussio

for its annu
ounty.  Alvin
to Angleton 
he purchase 
ts, this past s

a fundraisin
k Park. 

fficer, if applic

Click here to 

Page 1 o

& Rec Dir. 

n October 18
d for closure
, E. Sealy St
at north exi

on & Direction

ual fundraise
n Blue Santa
Independen
of bikes and

summer they

ng event on 

cable ☐ 

enter a date.

of 1  

, 
e 
t. 
t 

r 
a 

nt 
d 
y 



2015 Blue Santa Fundraiser Event 



De
 
Ag

 

Typ

 
Sum
Dov
“NO
inst
ordi
 

 

 

 
 
Sup
 
 

 
Re

 
 

Re
Re

Fu

Bu

Ac

Le

 

epartment:

genda Item

pe of Item:

mmary:   T
ver Circle an
O PARKING
talled with a
inance was a

pporting d
Ordinance 1
Exhibit 1 - S

 

ecommend

eviewed by De
eviewed by Ci

 

unding Exp

udgeted Ite

ccount Num

egal Review

: Parks a

m:   Consid
Drive 
signag
thereto

  ☐Ordinance

This ordinan
nd College D
G” lettering 
a total estim
amended on 

ocuments
15-N No Par
Stadium Dri

dation:   M
sid
sta

epartment He
ity Attorney, if

pected: R

em: Yes ☐

mber:  

w Required

Age

and Recreati

der Ordinanc
between Do
e; providing

o; second rea

e 1st Reading ☒

ce is to esta
Drive.  The n
evenly spac

mated cost of
first reading

attached: 
rking along S
ve Map 

Move to appr
de of Stadiu
aff to provid

ead, if applica
f applicable ☒

Revenue ☐

☐  No ☒

d: N/A ☐

enda 

Meetin

ion 

ce 15-N, esta
over Circle a
g for a penalt
ading 

☒ Ordinance 

ablish a no p
no parking z
ced every tw
f $1,740; $2
g to restrict p

Stadium Driv

rove Ordinan
um Drive be
de appropriat

able ☒ 
☒ 

☐  Expen

☒  N/A

  Requ

 

 Com
 

ng Date:   9

ablishing a n
and College 
ty and publi

2nd Reading ☐

parking zone
zone will be

wenty feet th
240 for the s
parking alon

 

ve 

nce 15-N, e
etween Dov
te signage; s

 Revie
 Revie

nditure ☒

☐

uired ☒

mmen

9/17/2015 

Contact:

no parking z
Drive; auth

cation; and s

☐Resolution ☐

e along the n
e marked as 
hroughout an
signs and $

ng that certai

establishing 
ver Circle an
second readi

ewed by Chie
ewed by City 

 N/A ☐

Amount 

Date Com

ntary

Dan Kelins

zone along th
horizing staf
setting forth

☐ Public Hearin

north side of
a solid red l

nd three “No
1,500 for ou
in portion of

 
 

a no parkin
nd College 
ing. 

ef Financial O
Manager ☒ 

☐

$1,740 

mpleted 

y 

ske, Parks &

he north side
ff to provide
h other provi

ng ☐ Discussio

f Stadium dr
line with wh
o Parking” s
utsourced str
f Stadium Dr

ng zone alon
Drive; and 

fficer, if applic

9/3/2015 

& Rec. Dir. 

e of Stadium
e appropriate
isions related

on & Direction

rive between
hite stenciled
signs will be
riping.  Thi
rive only. 

ng the north 
authorizing 

cable ☐ 

m 
e 
d 

n 
d 
e 
s 



ORDINANCE NO. 15-N 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A “NO PARKING” ZONE ALONG 
THE NORTH SIDE OF STADIUM DRIVE BETWEEN DOVER CIRCLE 
AND COLLEGE DRIVE; AUTHORIZING STAFF TO PROVIDE 
APPROPRIATE SIGNAGE; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY AND 
PUBLICATION; AND SETTING FORTH OTHER PROVISIONS 
RELATED THERETO. 

 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1. There is hereby established a “No Parking” zone along the north side of Stadium 
Drive at Dover Circle, east to the eastern most edge of Stadium Drive at College Drive (see 
attached Exhibit 1). 
 
Section 2. That staff is authorized and directed to provide appropriate signage along the 
north side of Stadium Drive between Dover Circle and College Drive, consisting of a 
combination of signage and striping of a solid red line with white stenciled “NO PARKING” 
lettering as established herein.  
 
Section 3. Any person violating the parking restrictions established by this Ordinance, upon 
conviction, shall be punished by a fine prescribed by section 1-5. 
 
Section 4. Severability. Should any section or part of this ordinance be held 
unconstitutional, illegal, invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons 
thereof ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or 
ineffectiveness of such section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining 
portion or portions thereof; but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and 
remain in full force and effect and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be 
severable.  
 

Section 5. Penalty Provision.  Any person, firm, corporation or business entity violating this 
Ordinance if deemed guilty, and upon conviction thereof shall be fined as set forth herein. Each 
unlawful act or continuing day’s violation under this Ordinance shall constitute a separate 
offense.  The penal provision imposed under this Ordinance shall not preclude the City of Alvin 
from filing suit to enjoin the violation.  The City of Alvin retains all legal rights and remedies 
available to it pursuant to local, state and federal law. 
 
Section 6. Publication.  The City Clerk of the City of Alvin is hereby directed to publish 
this Ordinance, or its caption and penalty clause, in one issue of the official City newspaper as 
required by the City of Alvin Charter. 
 



Ord. 15-N                       Page 2 of 2 

 

Section 7. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 
passage and publication in accordance with the provisions of Chapt. 52, Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code, 
and the City of Alvin Charter. 
 
Section 8. Open Meetings Act.   It is hereby officially found and determined that the 
meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public 
notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, Tex. Gov’t Code. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on first reading this ____ day of _____________________, 2015. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on second and final reading this ____ day of ___________, 2015. 
 
 
ATTEST:      CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 
 
 
By: _______________________________  By: ________________________________ 

Dixie Roberts, City Clerk Paul A. Horn, Mayor 
 



Exh. 1   No Parking on North Side Stadium Drive 

Approximately 260 L.F. 



De
 
Ag

 

Typ

 
Sum
Env
Perm
ame
from
Sep
Coa
 
Bac
Elim
con
Env
fede
disc
by t
 
TPD
of s
rene
 
The
assi
con
Rich
Dra
its m
mem
 

Fu

Bu

 

 

epartment:

genda Item

pe of Item:

mmary:   T
vironmental 
mit No. TXR
end their ex
m October 1
ptember 30, 
alition have b

ckground:  
mination Sys
ntrol dischar
vironmental 
eral regulato
charges asso
the Railroad

DES Genera
storm water t
ewed on Dec

e Brazoria C
ist one anoth

nsists of the 
hwood, Braz

ainage Distri
members, pe
mbers. 

unding Exp

udgeted Ite

: Public 

m:   Consid
IX, St
related

  ☒Ordinance

The suggeste
Quality (TC
R040000 wh

xisting ordin
st – Septem
2015.  The 
been tasked 

The State 
stem (NPDE
rges of pol
Quality (TC

ory authorit
ciated with o
Commissio

al Permit TX
to surface w
cember 16, 2

ounty Storm
her in compl
City of Alvi
zoria County
ict, and Vela
ermit issuan

pected: R

em: Yes ☐

Age

Services, Co

der Ordinanc
torm Water 
d thereto; firs

e 1st Reading ☐

ed changes t
CEQ) made t
hen they ren
ances to inc

mber 30th eac
City of Alv
to adopt the

of Texas as
ES) program 
llutants to 
CEQ) Texas
ty over disc
oil, gas, and
n of Texas. 

XR040000 wa
water in the s
2013.   

mwater Quali
lying with S
in, City of A
y, Brazoria C
asco Drainag
nce, applicati

Revenue ☐

☐  No 

enda 

Meetin

ode Complia

ce 15-U ame
Quality; pr

st reading. 

☐ Ordinance 

to this ordina
to the Texas
ewed it.  Th

clude the ne
ch year and 

vin and all o
ese updates.  

ssumed the 
in Texas on
surface wa

s Pollutant D
charges of p
geothermal 

as issued and
tate from sm

ity Coalition
Stormwater q
Angleton, Ci
County C&R
ge District.  
ions, and dis

☐  Expen

☐  N/A

 

 Com
 

ng Date:   9

ance 

ending Chap
roviding for

2nd Reading ☐

ance are a r
s Pollutant D
he TCEQ req

w provision
we are curr

other membe
 

authority to
n Sept. 14, 1
aters of the
Discharge E
pollutants to
exploration

d effective o
mall municip

n was formed
quality regul
ity of Clute, 
R District No
The Coalitio
sseminates a

 

nditure ☐

☒

mmen

9/17/2015 

Contact:

pter 25, Wat
r a penalty; 

☐Resolution ☐

esult of the 
Discharge El
quired all of 
ns within 2 p
rently in the 
ers of the B

o administe
998.  NPDE

e United St
Elimination S
o Texas sur

n and develop

on August 13
pal separate s

d in August 
lations estab
City of Fre

o. 3, Brazori
on provides 
all informati

 N/A ☒

ntary

Kacey Rom

ter and Sewe
and setting

☐ Public Hearin

revisions th
limination S
the entities 
permit years
2nd permit 

Brazoria Cou

er the Natio
ES is a feder
tates. The 
System (TP
rface water,
pment activi

3, 2007, and
storm sewer

2007 as an e
blished by th
eport, City o
ia Drainage 
contract sto
ion from the

 
☒

y 

man, Code Co

ers; by amen
g forth othe

ng ☐ Discussio

he Texas Com
ystem (TPD
covered by t
s.  Our perm
year, which

unty Stormw

onal Pollutan
ral regulatory
Texas Com
DES) progr
, with the e
ities, which 

d authorizes t
r systems (M

effort by the
he TCEQ.  T
of Lake Jack
District No.

orm water in
e TCEQ to t

Page 1 of 2

omp. Supv. 

nding Article
er provisions

on & Direction

mmission on
DES) Genera

the permit to
mit years run
h will end on
water Quality

nt Discharge
y program to

mmission on
ram now ha
exception o
are regulated

the discharge
MS4s).  It wa

e members to
The Coalition
kson, City o
. 4, Angleton
spections fo
the Coalition

2  

e 
s 

n 
al 
o 
n 
n 
y 

e 
o 
n 
s 
f 
d 

e 
s 

o 
n 
f 
n 
r 
n 



 
 
Sup

 
Re

 
 

Re
Re

 

 

 

pporting d
 Ord. 15-

 

ecommend

eviewed by De
eviewed by Ci

Account N

Legal Rev

ocuments
- U & Contr

dation:   M
St

epartment He
ity Attorney, if

Number:  

view Requi

attached: 
actor Agreem

Move to appro
torm Water Q

ead, if applica
f applicable ☒

red: N/A 

  
ment 

ove Ordinan
Quality. 

able ☒ 
☒ 

☐  Re

nce 15-U am

 Revie
 Revie

quired ☒

mending Chap

ewed by Chie
ewed by City 

Amount

☒  Date C

pter 25, Wat

ef Financial O
Manager ☒ 

t  

Completed 

ter & Sewer,

fficer, if applic

9/1/2015

Page 2 of 2

, Article IX, 

cable ☐ 

2  



ORDINANCE NO. 15-U 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 25, WATER AND SEWERS, 
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 
BY AMENDING ARTICLE IX, STORM WATER QUALITY; 
PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY; AND SETTING FORTH OTHER 
PROVISIONS RELATED THERETO. 

 
WHEREAS, the City staff has recommended amendments to the City’s industrial waste 
regulations in order to better protect the health, safety and general welfare  
of the citizens of the City of Alvin; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the proposed changes and is of the opinion that the 
same are in the best interest of the health, safety and general welfare of the citizens of the City of 
Alvin; NOW THEREFORE,  
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN: 
 
Section 1.        That Chapter 25 of the Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas; is hereby 
amended by revising certain sections of Article IX, which said article shall read as follows: 

 

ARTICLE IX.  STORM WATER QUALITY 

 
DIVISION 1. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
“Sec. 25-252.  Objectives. 
 
The objectives of this chapter are as follows: 

 
(1) To maintain and improve the quality of surface water within the city; 
(2) To prevent or reduce the discharge of contaminated storm water runoff from construction 

and residential sites into the municipal separate storm sewer system (MS4) and surface 
waters within the city; 

(3) To facilitate compliance with federal and state rules and regulations by owners, operators, 
contractors, and subcontractors of construction sites and commercial facilities within the 
city; 

(4) To enable the city to comply with all federal and state laws and regulations applicable to 
storm water discharges. 

 
Sec. 25-253. Administration. 
 

The City Manager, or designee, is authorized to administer, implement, and enforce the 
provisions of this chapter. 
 
Sec. 25-254. Submission of documents. 
 



Ord. 15-U               Page 2 of 23 

 

All persons required by federal or state regulations or this chapter to submit documents, 
pertaining to discharges of storm water or accidental discharges into the local MS4, shall submit 
all applicable documents to the following mailing address: 
 
City of Alvin 
City Manager 
216 W. Sealy 
Alvin, Texas 77511 
 
Sec. 25-255. Definitions. 
 
As used in this article: 
 
Agricultural storm water runoff.  Any storm water runoff from orchards, cultivated crops, 
pastures, range lands, and other nonpoint source agricultural activities, but not discharges from 
concentrated animal feeding operations as defined in 40 CFR § 122.23 or discharges from 
concentrated aquatic production facilities as defined in 40 CFR § 122.24.   
 
Best management practice (BMP).  Schedules of activities, prohibitions of practices, 
maintenance procedures, structural controls, and other management practices to prevent the 
pollution of the MS4 and waters in the state. Best management practices also include treatment 
requirements, operating procedures, and practices to control site runoff, spillage or leaks, sludge 
or waste disposal, or drainage from raw materials storage areas.   
 
City.  The City of Alvin, Texas, or any authorized person acting in its behalf.   
 
Commencement of construction activities.  The initial disturbance of soils associated with 
clearing, grading or excavation activities, as well as other construction-related activities (e.g. 
stockpiling of fill material, demolition).   
 
Common plan of development or sale.  A construction activity that is completed in separate 
stages, separate phases, or in combination with other construction activities. A common plan of 
development or sale is identified by the documentation for the construction project that identifies 
the scope of the project, and may include plats, blueprints, marketing plans, contracts, building 
permits, a public notice or hearing, zoning requests, or other similar documentation and 
activities.   
 
Construction activity.  Construction activities including clearing, grading, and excavating that 
result in land disturbances of equal to or greater than one acre. Construction activity also 
includes the disturbance of less than one acre of total land area that is part of a larger common 
plan of development or sale if the larger common plan will ultimately disturb equal to or greater 
than one acre of land. Construction activity does not include routine maintenance that is 
performed to maintain the original line and grade, hydraulic capacity, and original purpose of the 
site (e.g., the routine grading of existing dirt roads, asphalt overlays of existing roads, the routine 
clearing of existing right-of-ways, and similar maintenance activities).   
 



Ord. 15-U               Page 3 of 23 

 

Contamination.  The presence of or entry into a public water supply system, the MS4 or water in 
the state, any substance which may be detrimental to the public health and/or the quality of 
water.   
 
Contractor.  For the purposes of this chapter, the contractor is the person or persons that have 
day-to-day operational control of those activities at a construction site that are necessary to 
ensure compliance with local pollution prevention requirements, although they do not qualify as 
an operator under the construction permit.   
 
Conveyance.  Curbs, gutters, manmade channels and ditches, drains, pipes, and other constructed 
features designed or used for flood control or to otherwise transport storm water runoff.   
 
Discharge.  To deposit, conduct, drain, emit, throw, run, allow to seep, or otherwise release or 
dispose of any substance, or to cause, allow, permit, or suffer any of these acts or omissions.   
 
Domestic sewage.  Waterborne human waste and waste from domestic activities, including the 
use of toilet facilities, washing, bathing, and food preparation.   
 
Erosion.  The process of land being diminished or worn away due to wind or water.  Erosion 
occurs naturally, but can be intensified by land-disturbing activities such as development, 
farming, road building, timber harvesting, etc.   
 
Facility.  Any building, structure, installation, process or activity from which there is or may be a 
discharge of a pollutant.   
 
Final stabilization.  A construction site status where any of the following conditions are met:   

 
(1)  All soil disturbing activities at the construction site have been completed and a uniform 

(e.g. evenly distributed, without large bare areas) perennial vegetative cover with a 
density of 70 percent of the native background vegetative cover for the area has been 
established on all unpaved areas and areas not covered by permanent structures, or 
equivalent permanent stabilization measures (such as riprap, geotextiles, or gabions) have 
been employed; 

(2)  For individual lots in a residential construction site, the homebuilder has completed final 
stabilization on the individual lot(s) as specified in condition (1) above; 

(3)  For construction activities on land used for agricultural purposes (e.g. pipelines across 
crop or rangeland), final stabilization may be accomplished by returning the disturbed 
land to its preconstruction agricultural use. Areas disturbed that were not previously used 
for agricultural activities, such as buffer strips immediately adjacent to surface water and 
areas, which are not being returned to their preconstruction agricultural use, shall meet 
the final stabilization conditions of condition (1) above. 

 
Hazardous substance or materials.  Any substance listed in table 302.4 of 40 CFR Part 302.   
 
Hazardous waste.  Any substance identified or listed as a hazardous waste by the EPA pursuant 
to 40 CFR Part 261.   
 



Ord. 15-U               Page 4 of 23 

 

Illicit connection.  Any manmade conveyance connecting an illicit discharge directly to a 
municipal separate storm sewer.   
 
Illicit discharge.  Any discharge to a municipal separate storm sewer that is not entirely 
composed of storm water, except discharges authorized under an NPDES or TPDES permit and 
discharges resulting from emergency fire fighting activities.   
 
Large construction activity.  Construction activities including clearing, grading, and excavating 
that result in land disturbances of equal to or greater than five acres of land.  Large construction 
activity also includes the disturbance of less than five acres of total land area that is part of a 
larger common plan of development or sale if the larger common plan will ultimately disturb 
equal to or greater than five acres of land.  Large construction activity does not include routine 
maintenance that is performed to maintain the original line and grade, hydraulic capacity, and 
original purpose of a ditch, channel, or other similar storm water conveyance.  Large 
construction activity does not include the routine grading of existing dirt roads, asphalt overlays 
or existing roads, the routine clearing of existing right-of-ways, and similar maintenance 
activities.   
 
Maximum extent practicable (MEP).  The technology-based discharge standard for municipal 
separate storm sewer systems to reduce pollutants in storm water discharges that was established 
by CWA §402(p).   
 
MS4 operator.  The public entity, and/or the entity contracted by the public entity, responsible 
for management and operation of the municipal separate storm sewer system.   
 
Municipal separate storm sewer system (MS4).  A separate storm sewer system owned or 
operated by the United States, a state, city, town, county, district, association, or other public 
body (created by or pursuant to state law) having jurisdiction over the disposal of sewage, 
wastes, storm water, or other wastes, including special districts under state law such as a sewer 
district, flood control or drainage district, or similar entity, or an Indian tribe or an authorized 
Indian tribal organization, that discharges to surface water in the state. 
   
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES).  The national program for issuing, 
modifying, revoking and reissuing, terminating, monitoring and enforcing requirements of 
certain sections of the federal Clean Water Act.   
 
Nonpoint source.  Any source of any discharge of a pollutant that is not a "point source".   
 
Notice of intent (NOI).  A written submission to TCEQ, from an applicant, requesting coverage 
under a general permit.   
 
NPDES permit.  A permit issued by the EPA that authorizes the discharge of pollutants to waters 
of the United States, whether the permit is applicable on an individual, group, or general basis. In 
the State of Texas, the EPA retains authority for permitting oil and gas exploration activities and 
Indian Country land.   
 



Ord. 15-U               Page 5 of 23 

 

Oil.  Any kind of oil in any form, including, but not limited to, petroleum, fuel oil, crude oil or 
any fraction thereof which is liquid at standard conditions of temperature and pressure, sludge, 
oil refuse, and oil mixed with waste.   
 
Outfall.  A point source at the point where a municipal separate storm sewer discharges to water 
in the state and does not include open conveyances connecting two municipal separate storm 
sewers, or pipes, tunnels, or other conveyances that connect segments of the same stream or 
other waters of the U.S. and are used to convey waters of the U.S.   
 
Owner.  For the purposes of this chapter, the owner is the person or persons that have operational 
control over construction plans and specifications, including the ability to make modifications to 
those plans and specifications, although they do not qualify as an operator under the construction 
permit.   
 
Permit.  Either an NPDES or TPDES permit, whichever is applicable.   
 
Permittee.  An MS4 operator authorized under an NPDES or TPDES permit.   
 
Person.  Any individual, partnership, co-partnership, firm, company, corporation, association, 
joint stock company, trust, estate, governmental entity, or any other legal entity; or their legal 
representatives, agents, or assigns. This definition includes all federal, state, and local 
governmental entities.   
 
Point source.  (from 40 CFR §122.22) Any discernable, confined, and discrete conveyance, 
including but not limited to, any pipe, ditch, channel, tunnel, conduit, well, discrete fissure, 
container, rolling stock, concentrated animal feeding operation, landfill leachate collection 
system, vessel or other floating craft from which pollutants are or may be discharged. This term 
does not include return flows from irrigated agriculture or agricultural storm water runoff.   
 
Pollutant.  Dredged spoil, solid waste, incinerator residue, garbage, sewage, sewage sludge, filter 
backwash, munitions, chemical wastes, biological materials, radioactive materials, heat, wrecked 
or discarded equipment, rock, sand, cellar dirt, municipal, and agricultural waste discharged into 
water. The term "pollutant" does not include tail water or runoff water from irrigation or 
rainwater runoff from cultivated or uncultivated rangeland, pastureland, and farmland.   
 
Pollution.  (from Texas Water Code §26.001(14)) The alteration of the physical, thermal, 
chemical, or biological quality of, or the contamination of, any water in the state that renders the 
water harmful, detrimental, or injurious to humans, animal life, vegetation, or property, or to the 
public health, safety, or welfare, or impairs the usefulness or the public enjoyment of the water 
for any lawful or reasonable purpose.   
 
Release.  Any spilling, leaking, pumping, pouring, emitting, emptying, discharging, injecting, 
escaping, leaching, dumping, or disposing into the municipal separate storm sewer system (MS4) 
or water in the state.   
 
Responsible party. The owner, occupant, developer, builder, or general contractor who has 
operational control over the site, including the ability to make modifications in specifications, or 



Ord. 15-U               Page 6 of 23 

 

who has operational control over day-to-day activities at the site and is able to ensure compliance 
with plan requirements and permit conditions (e.g., a person who is authorized to direct the 
conduct of workers at the site).  Any person who has filed a Notice of Intent (NOI) or completed 
a Construction Site Notice is presumed to be a responsible party.   
 
Riparian.  Any area relating to or located on the bank of a natural watercourse.   
 
Runoff.  Drainage or flood discharge that leaves an area as surface flow or as pipeline flow.   
 
Sediment.  Soil, sand, and minerals washed from land into water, usually after rain.   
 
Separate storm sewer system.  A conveyance or system of conveyances (including roads with 
drainage systems, municipal streets, catch basins, curbs, gutters, ditches, manmade channels, 
outfalls, or storm drains), designed or used for collecting or conveying storm water; which is not 
a combined sewer, and which is not part of a publicly owned treatment works (POTW) as 
defined at 40 CFR §122.2.   
 
Small construction activity.  Construction activities including clearing, grading, and excavating 
that result in land disturbance of equal to or greater than one acre and less than five acres of land.  
Small construction activity also includes the disturbance of less than one acre of total land area 
that is part of a larger common plan of development or sale if the larger common plan will 
ultimately disturb equal to or greater than one and less than five acres of land. Small construction 
activity does not include routine maintenance that is performed to maintain the original line and 
grade, hydraulic capacity, and original purpose of a ditch, channel, or other similar storm water 
conveyance.  Small construction activity does not include the routine grading of existing dirt 
roads, asphalt overlays of existing roads, the routine clearing of existing right-of-ways, and 
similar maintenance activities. 
 
Storm drain.  An opening leading to an underground pipe or an open ditch for carrying surface 
runoff.   
 
Storm water.  Any flow occurring during or after any form of natural precipitation, including 
rainfall runoff, snowmelt runoff, and surface runoff and drainage.   
 
Storm water associated with construction activity.  Storm water runoff from a construction 
activity where soil disturbing activities (including clearing, grading, and excavating) result in the 
disturbance of one or more acres of total land area, or are part of a larger common plan of 
development or sale that will ultimately result in the disturbance of one or more acres of total 
land area.   
 
Storm Water Permit.  Authorization issued by the City to conduct construction activities. 
 
Storm water pollution prevention plan (SWP3).  A plan required by a construction general permit 
to discharge storm water associated with construction and which describes and ensures the 
implementation of practices that are to be used to reduce the pollutants in storm water discharges 
associated with construction at the facility.   
 



Ord. 15-U               Page 7 of 23 

 

Storm Water Quality Plan.  A plan describing how construction is to be performed and how the 
site closure is to be accomplished, including post-construction control measures, at a 
construction site.  
 
Structural control (or practice).  A pollution prevention practice that requires the construction of 
a device, or the use of a device, to capture or prevent pollution in storm water runoff. Structural 
controls and practices may include but are not limited to: wet ponds, infiltration basins, storm 
water wetlands, silt fences, earthen dikes, drainage swales, sediment traps, check dams, 
stabilized construction entrances, subsurface drains, storm drain inlet protection, rock outlet 
protection, reinforced soil retaining systems, gabions, and temporary or permanent sediment 
basins.   
 
Temporary stabilization.  A condition where exposed soils or disturbed areas are provided a 
protective cover or other structural control to prevent the migration of pollutants. Temporary 
stabilization may include temporary seeding, geotextiles, mulches, perimeter controls, and other 
techniques to reduce or eliminate erosion until either final stabilization can be achieved or until 
further construction activities take place.   
 
Texas Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (TPDES).  The state program for issuing, 
modifying, revoking and reissuing, terminating, monitoring and enforcing requirements of 
certain sections of the federal Clean Water Act.   
 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ).  The permitting authority for storm water 
discharges.  
 
TPDES permit.  A permit issued by the state that authorizes discharges of pollutants to water in 
the state and waters of the United States, whether the permit is applicable on an individual, group 
or general basis.   
 
Water in the state.  Any groundwater, percolating or otherwise, lakes, bays, ponds, impounding 
reservoirs, springs, rivers, streams, creeks, estuaries, marshes, inlets, canals, the Gulf of Mexico 
inside the territorial limits of the state, and all other bodies of surface water, natural or artificial, 
inland or coastal, fresh or salt, navigable or non-navigable, and including the beds and banks of 
all water courses and bodies of surface water, that are wholly or partially inside or bordering the 
state or inside the jurisdiction of the state.   
 
Waters of the United States.  All waters which are currently used, were used in the past, or may 
be susceptible to use in interstate or foreign commerce, including all waters which are subject to 
the ebb and flow of the tide; all interstate waters, including interstate wetlands; all other waters 
the use, degradation, or destruction of which would affect or could affect interstate or foreign 
commerce; all impoundments of waters otherwise defined as waters of the United States under 
this definition; all tributaries of waters identified in this definition; all wetlands adjacent to 
waters identified in this definition; and any waters within the federal definition of "waters of the 
United States" at 40 CFR §122.2; but not including any waste treatment systems, treatment 
ponds, or lagoons designed to meet the requirements of the federal Clean Water Act.   
 



Ord. 15-U               Page 8 of 23 

 

Wetland.  An area that is inundated or saturated by surface or groundwater at a frequency and 
duration sufficient to support, and that under normal circumstances does support, a prevalence of 
vegetation typically adapted for life in saturated soil conditions. Wetlands generally include 
swamps, marshes, bogs, and similar areas.  
 
Sec. 25-256. Citizen Reporting.   
 

(a)    All citizens are encouraged to report any spills, releases, illicit connections, other 
instances of anyone discharging pollutants into the MS4 or waters of the United States, and any 
other violation of this article of which they become aware to the City Manager. 

 
(b)    Such citizen reports may be made by telephone, in writing, or in person. A written 

record of each citizen report to the city will be prepared and kept on file for a period of three 
years, and a copy of the city's record of the report will be furnished to the reporting citizen upon 
request. Also upon request, the City Manager will inform the reporting citizen of any action 
undertaken by the city in response to the citizen's report.   
 
Sec. 25-257. Notification of spills. 
 

Notwithstanding other requirements of law, as soon as any person responsible for a facility or 
operation, or responsible for emergency response for a facility or operation has information of 
any known or suspected release of materials which are resulting or may result in illegal 
discharges or pollutants into storm water, the storm drain system, or waters of the U.S., said 
person shall take all necessary steps to ensure the discovery, containment, and cleanup of such 
release.  In the event of such a release of hazardous materials, said person shall immediately 
notify emergency response agencies of the occurrence.  In the event of a release of non-
hazardous materials, said person shall notify the City Manager no later than the next working 
day.  If the discharge of prohibited materials emanates from a commercial or industrial 
establishment, the owner or operator of such establishment shall retain an on-site written record 
of the discharge and the action taken to prevent its recurrence.  Such records shall be retained for 
at least five (5) years. 

 
Sec. 25-258 - 25-269. Reserved. 
 

 
DIVISION 2.  ILLICIT DISCHARGESSTORM WATER SYSTEM 

 
Sec. 25-270. Illicit Discharge. 
 

No person shall introduce, cause to be introduced, or allow to be introduced an illicit 
discharge into the MS4, except those discharges listed in Section 25-258271.  Illicit discharge 
may result in the termination of the MS4 access by the City Manager. 
 
Sec. 25-271. Allowable Non-Storm Wwater Discharges. 
 

(a) The following non-storm water discharges may be discharged to the MS4, provided that 
subsection (b) below does not apply: 



Ord. 15-U               Page 9 of 23 

 

 
(1) A discharge authorized by, and in full compliance with, a TPDES or NPDES 

permit; 
(2) Water line flushing (excluding discharges of hyperchlorinated water, unless the 

water is first dechlorinated and discharges are not expected to adversely affect 
aquatic life); 

(3) Runoff or return flow from landscape irrigation, lawn irrigation, and other 
irrigation utilizing uncontaminated sources of potable water, groundwater, or 
surface water; 

(4) Discharges from a potable water source; 
(5) Diverted stream flows; 
(6)  Rising ground waters and springs; 
(7)  Uncontaminated ground water infiltration; 
(8)  Uncontaminated pumped ground water; 
(9)  A discharge from a foundation drain or a footing drain; 
(10)  Air conditioning condensate; 
(11)  Water from a crawl space pump; 
(12)  A discharge from residential car washing and non-commercial car washing 

events; 
(13)  Flows from a riparian habitat or wetland; 
(14)  Dechlorinated swimming pool discharges; 
(15)  Street wash water; 
(16)  Dye testing if verbal notification to the City is given prior to the time of the test;  
(17)  A discharge or flow from emergency fire fighting activities; and  
(18)  Other similar occasional non-storm water discharges, unless the TCEQ develops 

permits or regulations addressing these discharges. 
 

(b) The city may, on a case-by-case basis, prohibit any of the above listed allowable non-
storm water discharges in subsection (a) provided: 

 
(1) The discharge or flow in question has been determined by the TCEQ or City Manager 

to be a significant contributor of a pollutant or pollutants to water in the state or the 
MS4; and 

 
(2) Written notice of such determination has been provided to the discharger. 
 

(c) Specific Prohibitions of Construction Related Illicit Discharges.  It is unlawful for a 
person to intentionally, knowingly, recklessly or with criminal negligence, create, cause, 
introduce, or contribute to creating, causing or introducing any discharge that causes and/or 
contributes to a violation of applicable water quality standards, a discharge or flow composed of 
one or more of the following from construction site: 
 

(1) Pollutants from equipment, vehicle and/or other wash waters; 
(2) Pollutants from exposed building materials, building products, construction wastes, 

trash, landscape materials, fertilizers, pesticides, herbicides, detergents, sanitary waste 
or other similar materials; 

(3) Pollutants from spills and/or leaks; 



Ord. 15-U               Page 10 of 23 

 

(4) Pollutants from washout wastewater, fuels, oils, soaps, solvents, and dewatering 
activities. 

 
Sec. 25-272. Illicit connections prohibited. 
 

It is unlawful for any person to construct, use, maintain, or continue the existence of an illicit 
connection.  Illicit connections may be terminated by order of the City Manager without prior 
notice. 
 
Sec. 25-273. Suspension of MS4 Access. 
 
(a) The City Manager may, without prior notice, issue an emergency order suspending MS4 

discharge access when such suspension is necessary to stop an actual or threatened discharge 
that presents or may present imminent and substantial danger to the environment, to the 
health or welfare of persons, or to the MS4.  If the person who receives the suspension order 
fails to comply, the City Manager may take steps to prevent or minimize damage to the MS4 
or to minimize danger to the public. 
 

(b) Access may not be reinstated without written approval from the City Manger. 
 
Sec. 25-274 – 25-279. Reserved. 

 
 

DIVISION 3.  CONSTRUCTION STORM WATER MANAGEMENT- 
POST-CONSTRUCTION STORM WATER MANAGEMENT 

 
Sec. 25-280. Construction Site. 
 

(a) A construction site includes all areas where construction activity, which is all or part of a 
common development or project, are occurring, proposed to occur, or have occurred, irrespective 
of whether that construction is in compliance with this Chapter, irrespective of whether that 
construction activity is ongoing or temporarily suspended for any purpose, and irrespective of 
whether the City Manager has granted authorization to undertake the construction activity.  A 
construction site shall encompass: 
 

(1) All land and surface water areas where construction activities of any type, including 
all areas of land surface disturbed by or as a consequence of the construction 
activities or other activities in support of the construction activities, are undertaken as 
part of a common plan of development or project; 

 
(2) All areas of land to be disturbed by construction of a common plan of development or 

project, irrespective of whether such construction is undertaken or planned to be 
undertaken in one phase or stage or different phases or stages and irrespective of 
whether such construction is undertaken or planned to be undertaken at different, 
separate, or simultaneous times; 

 



Ord. 15-U               Page 11 of 23 

 

(3) All areas of land where the land is to be disturbed by construction of a common plan 
of development or project, irrespective of whether undertaken at contiguous or 
separate locations within the general area encompassed by the common plan of 
development or project, provided such boundary lies on or is within the boundary of 
property collectively owned or leased by one or more parties undertaking any or all of 
the construction activities; and 

 
(4) All areas of ongoing, temporarily suspended, yet-to-be undertaken, and completed 

construction encompassing the totality of the construction activities, irrespective of 
whether any or all the construction activities are within compliance with this chapter. 

 
(b) The City Manager shall have the right to redefine, for purposes of compliance with this 

chapter, the limits of a construction site in extent and amount necessary and sufficient in the 
judgment of the City Manager to prevent the actual or potential discharge of pollutants from the 
construction site to the MS4 or waters of the U.S., provided the limits lie on or within the 
boundary of property collectively owned or leased by one or more operators undertaking any or 
all of the construction activities at the site. 

 
(c) A construction site shall cease to be a construction site only at such time that all 

requirements for closure of the construction site as specified by this chapter and in the storm 
water permit have been met, at which time the storm water permit will automatically terminate. 

 
(d) The storm water permit coverage will automatically terminate two (2) years after the 

permit issuance date. If a permit is needed beyond the termination or expiration date, a new 
permit must be issued. 

 
(e) A construction site for which active and ongoing on-site construction activities have 

halted for a period of twenty-one (21) continuous calendar days and for which proper closure 
actions as required by this chapter have not been conducted, shall be considered in violation of 
this chapter, unless the construction site owner and/or operator has demonstrated to the 
satisfaction of the City Manager that: 

 
(1) Such lack of active and ongoing on-site construction activity is a result of only 

temporary suspension of activities; and 
 
(2) Temporary stabilization practices were initiated no later than fourteen (14) calendar 

days after the site becoming inactive. 
 

(f) Any and all owners and/or operators of a construction site and any and all other persons 
undertaking construction activities as a contractor or subcontractor at a construction site shall use 
best management practices to control, reduce, and prevent, to the maximum extent practicable, 
the discharge of pollutants to the MS4 and/or waters of the U.S.  The discharge of pollutants to 
the MS4 and/or waters of the U.S. from activities conducted by said operator, contractor, or 
subcontractor include but is not limited to: sediment, silt, earth, soil, dirt, sand and gravel; lime, 
liquids, solids, and semi-solids used for soil treatment, preparation, or amendment; concrete, 
slurries, grout, tar, and asphalt; construction vehicle and/or equipment cleaning wash waters; 
construction  vehicle cleaning and wash waters; construction vehicle maintenance fluids such as 



Ord. 15-U               Page 12 of 23 

 

hydraulic fluids, lubricants, fuels, brake fluids, and coolants; hazardous or extremely hazardous 
materials; materials resulting from repair, renovation, or demolition such as concrete, reinforcing 
bar, steel, wire, tar paper, roofing materials, sheet rock, plaster, wood, cellar dirt and carpeting; 
residual and surplus construction materials; paint thinner, paint equipment cleaner and 
wastewater from the cleaning of painting equipment and supplies; waste construction material 
packaging and containers; and construction trash, debris, and waste building materials, building 
products, landscape materials, fertilizers, pesticides, herbicides, detergents, sanitary waste, 
washout waters, spills leaks, solvents, and dewatering activities.     
 
Sec. 25-281.  Adoption of the Storm Water Management Guidance Document. 
 

The Brazoria County Storm Water Quality Coalition MS4 Construction Guidance Document 
is adopted to ensure storm water entering the navigable waters of the United States from the 
city's municipal separate storm sewer system does not violate the terms of the city's storm water 
national pollution discharge elimination system permit. The guidance document contains 
suggested best management practices that owners, developers, and contractors should consider 
adopting to help control and reduce pollutants that are transported by storm waters and technical 
guidance related to erosion and sediment controls and other measures to reduce pollutants from 
new construction projects.  The manual can be found at http://www.alvin-tx.gov.   
 
Sec. 25-282.  Storm Water Permit. 
 

(a)  The owner and/or operator of a construction site must apply for a Storm Water Permit at 
least ten (10) days prior to the start of any construction activity. Construction must be started no 
later than (180) calendar days after the date the Storm Water Permit is issued.  Failure to begin 
within 180 calendar days shall render the Storm Water Permit void. 
 

(b)  The Storm Water Permit must be posted at the construction site. 
 

(c)  The owner and/or operator of a construction site may apply for a change in the date of 
commencement of construction or the date of termination of construction specified in the Storm 
Water Permit, this application must be made at least two (2) working days prior to:   

 
(1) the date of the proposed change for commencement; and/or  
(2) the date of the termination date. 

(d)  If for any reason the Storm Water Permit is suspended, revoked, terminated, or voided, 
construction activity at the site shall immediately cease. 
 

(e)  Application for amendment to a Storm Water Permit can be made at any time ten (10) or 
more working days prior to the time identified in the Storm Water Permit for completion of 
construction activities, provided the person(s) making application is not in violation of this 
Chapter.  An appropriately modified Storm Water Quality Plan shall also be provided at the time 
of application for amendment to the City Manager.  Construction undertaken in accordance with 
the amended Storm Water Permit shall not commence until the amendment is approved by the 
City Manager.  Approval of such amendment does not relieve the applicant or owner and/or 
operator from any or all administrative enforcement remedies, judicial enforcement remedies, 
enforcement actions, or other remedies allowed by law.   



Ord. 15-U               Page 13 of 23 

 

 
(f)  In the event that the operator of the construction site changes within ten (10) working 

days of the change, any and all Storm Water Permits, and Storm Water Quality Plans, permits, 
plans, or notices must be amended to reflect the name of the new operator.  
 
Sec. 25-283.  Same – contents. 
 

(a) The Storm Water Permit shall contain the following: 
 
(1) Storm Water Quality Plan; 
(2) Address or other description of location of the construction site; 
(3) Name, address, and telephone number of the construction site owner and/or operator 

and the operator’s on-site representative, either the property owner or lessee, and 
name and address of general construction contractor, if different from property owner 
or lessee; 

(4) Earliest date of commencement of construction activity; 
(5) Proposed dates of termination of construction activity, completion of final 

stabilization activities, and closure of the site; 
(6) Any other information the City Manager may deem necessary; and 
(7) Certification by the applicant for the Storm Water Permit that the information 

provided on the Storm Water Permit application is true and accurate. 
 
Sec. 25-284.  Same – exemptions. 

 
Exemptions from the requirements for a Storm Water Permit and Storm Water Quality Plan 

shall apply for the following situations or conditions: 
 
(1) The construction activity is undertaken at a single or multiple family residential property 

site for the sole purpose of maintenance of the residential property site; and 
 
(2) The construction is necessary on an emergency basis because of imminent harm or 

endangerment to the public or environment, in which case the construction may by 
continued only so long as such imminent harm or endangerment or threat of harm or 
endangerment exists. 

 
Sec. 25-285.  Same – waiver. 

 
(a)  The City Manager may provide a waiver to the requirement for a Storm Water Permit 

upon the written request of the owner and/or operator seeking such waiver.  The waiver is to be 
provided only if the construction for which waiver is sought is demonstrated to the satisfaction of 
the City Manager to meet all of the following conditions: 

 
(1) The waiver will not contribute to a violation of this Chapter or any permit or license 

the City may hold to discharge storm water; 
 



Ord. 15-U               Page 14 of 23 

 

(2) The construction activity is of such size, extent, magnitude, or location as to neither 
allow, cause, or have potential to cause a  significant discharge of sediments or other 
pollutants to the City’s MS4 or waters of the U.S.; 

 
(3) There is a compelling public interest for issuance of a waiver; 
 
(4) It is in the general interest of the health and safety of people in the City or protection 

of the environment that such waiver be provided, such interest not to be based upon 
cost or economic considerations; and 

 
(5) Other such conditions the City Manager may deem necessary to ensure that 

significant discharge of sediment and other pollutants does not occur. 
 
Sec. 25-286.  Storm Water Quality Plan. 

 
(a) The Storm Water Quality Plan shall be prepared in accordance with the Brazoria County 

Storm Water Quality Coalition MS4 Construction Guidance Document and Best Management 
Practices (BMPs). The objective of the plan is to identify potential sources of pollution, 
including sediment, which will affect the quality of storm water discharges associated with 
construction and development.  The plan must describe the implementation of BMPs that will be 
used to reduce the pollutants in storm water discharges associated with construction and post-
development runoff.  Storm Water Quality Plans shall be retained on site during the course of 
construction and shall be available for inspection by the City upon request. 

 
(b) Contents of Storm Water Quality Plan 

 
(1) Site Description 

 
a. Total area of the site, and total disturbed area, including off-site staging/storage 

areas; 
b. A description of the existing vegetation at the site, including coverage; 
c. The location of other sources of pollution, such as vehicle fueling, storage of 

chemicals, concrete washout areas, etc.; and 
d. The name of the receiving water(s) and description of any outfalls (size, type, and 

location), if the discharge is to a MS4, the name of the system, the location of the 
storm sewer discharge, and the ultimate receiving water(s). 

 
(2) Construction Documents 

 
a. A description of the construction activity; 
b. A copy of the development plans; and 
c. Construction schedule. 

 
(3) Best Management Practices (BMPs) 

 



Ord. 15-U               Page 15 of 23 

 

a. The BMPs must include locations and descriptions of control measure for each 
phase of development, including before clearing and grading activities begin; 
during all phases of construction; and post-construction/post development. 

 
(4) Control Measures 

 
a. Construction phase control measures should include, but are not limited to, the 

following: 
 

(1) Temporary Sediment Control Measures 
(a) silt fence 
(b) sand bag berms 
(c) hay bales 
(d) check dams 
(e) interceptor swales/dikes 

 
(2) Temporary Stabilization Measures 

(a) temporary seeding 
(b) erosion control blankets/matting 
(c) mulch/compost 
(d) temporary sodding 

  
(3)  Final Stabilization Measures 

(a) permanent seeding 
(b) permanent sodding 
(c) impervious surfaces 

 
(c) Post-Construction Phase control measures shall must be incorporated into the Storm 

Water Quality Plan where necessary to preserve pre-development hydrologic regimes. These 
control measures do not apply to residential home construction. Post-construction phase control 
measures should include, but are not limited to, the following: 

 
(1)  Velocity Dissipation Measures 

(a)  On-Site 
(i) vegetated swales 
(ii) check dams 
(iii) vegetated filter strips 
(iv) level spreaders 
(v) velocity dissipation structures 

(b)  Off-Site 
(i) surrounding local topography 
(ii) concrete-lined drainage channels 
(iii) low velocity drainage channels 
 

(2)  Pre-development Peak Flow Preservation 
(a) On-Site 

(i) detention basins/ponds 



Ord. 15-U               Page 16 of 23 

 

(ii) constructed wetlands 
(iii) bio-retention 
(iv) wet basins 
 

(b) Off-Site 
(i) in-line detention 
(ii) outfall pump systems 
(iii) off-site (regional) detention 
(iv) low velocity drainage channels 
 

(3) Non-Structural Controls 
 (a) adequate litter trash services/receptacles 
 (b) street/parking lot sweeping cleaning as necessary 
 

 
(d)  Long Term Maintenance of On-Site Post-Construction Control Measures. 

 
(1) For new and significant redevelopment projects that are determined by the City to 

require on-site control post-construction control measures such as detention ponds, 
constructed wetlands, bio-retention systems, the developer or the person or persons 
who will be responsible for the maintenance of the control measures shall execute an 
affidavit that states that post-construction control measures shall be in place and 
maintained for as long as required. 
 

(2) The affidavit must be submitted to the City Manager no later than ten (10) calendar 
days before the commencement of construction activities and will serve as a legal 
commitment to the City. 

 
(3) The City Manager may also require that a Maintenance Bond be issued to ensure the 

maintenance is performed according to the said legal commitment.  
 

(e)  Inspections 
 

The plan shall provide that qualified personnel (provided by the operator of the 
construction site) shall inspect disturbed areas of any construction site that have not been 
finally stabilized, areas used for storage of materials that are exposed to precipitation, 
structural control measures, and locations where vehicles enter or exit the site, at least 
once every seven calendar days and within 24 hours of the end of a storm that is 0.5 
inches or greater. All erosion and sediment control measures and other identified best 
management practices shall be observed in order to ensure that they are operating 
correctly and are effective in preventing significant impacts to receiving waters and the 
MS4. Based on the results of the inspection, best management practices shall be modified 
as appropriate, and as soon as is practicable. 

 
(f)  Revisions to Storm Water Quality Plan 

 



Ord. 15-U               Page 17 of 23 

 

(1) The Storm Water Quality Plan shall accurately reflect site conditions and the 
construction activities proposed to be undertaken.  Revisions necessary to maintain an 
accurate and up-to-date Storm Water Quality Plan shall be made in a timely fashion 
but in no case later than two (2) working days after the occurrence of conditions or 
activities requiring such revisions. 

 
(2)  If the conditions or activities described by a Storm Water Quality Plan revision could 

be reasonably expected to result in an increase in the actual or potential discharge of 
pollutants from the site, such revision must be approved by the City Manager prior to 
implementation of the proposed revision.   

 
(3) If the City Manager does not approve or reject of the revision within ten (10) working 

days, the revision(s) shall be assumed to be approved. 
 
Sec. 25-287.  Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWP3) 

 
(a)  For a construction site that is one (1) or more acres but less than five (5) acres, or is five 

(5) or more acres and that is required by state or federal regulation to have a SWP3, the SWP3 
shall be prepared in accordance with applicable state and federal regulations. 

 
(b)  Any SWP3 required by federal or state regulation shall be retained on site during all 

phases of construction and a copy must be submitted to the city/county.  Failure to produce such 
required SWP3s shall be grounds for issuance of a stop work order. 

 
(c)  The City Manager may require additional information, plans, or specifications in a SWP3 

for a construction site if the City Manager determines such additional information, plans, or 
specifications are necessary to prevent the discharge of pollutants to the MS4 or waters of the 
U.S. 
 
Sec. 25-288 - 25-295. Reserved. 

 
DIVISION 4. CIVIL ENFORCEMENT 

 
Sec. 25-296.  Responsibility of other entities. 

(a)   Any owner of a site of construction activity, whether or not he/she is an operator, is 
jointly and individually responsible for compliance with the requirements in this section. 

 
(b)   Any contractor or subcontractor on a site of construction activity, who is not an owner 

or operator, but who is responsible under his/her contract or subcontract, for implementing a best 
management practices control measure, is jointly and individually responsible for any willful or 
negligent failure on his/her part to adequately implement that control measure. 
 
Sec. 25-297.  Right of Entry. 

 
The City Manager and/or appointed representative may, where reasonable cause exists, with 

or without a warrant, enter upon any property for examination of the same to ascertain whether a 



Ord. 15-U               Page 18 of 23 

 

violation of the requirements of this chapter exists and shall be exempt from any legal action or 
liability on account thereof. 
 
Sec. 25-298.  Stop Work Order.  
 

(a) Whenever the City Manager determines that there is a violation on a construction site of 
any provision of this chapter, or any order issued hereunder, the City Manager may issue a Stop 
Work Order (SWO) for that construction site. 

 
(b) Unless express written exception is made by the City Manager, the SWO shall prohibit 

any and all further construction activity at the site, and shall bar any further inspection or 
approval by the City of any work associated with a building permit, Storm Water Permit, or any 
other City approval necessary to commence construction or to assume occupancy at the site. 
 

(c) Issuance of a SWO shall not be a bar against, or a prerequisite for, taking any other action 
against the construction site owner and/or operator. 
 
Sec. 25-299. Notification of violation (NOV) 

 
(a) When the City Manager finds that any person has violated, or continues to violate, any 

provision of this chapter, or any order issued hereunder, the City may serve upon that person a 
written NOV.  Within ten (10) calendar days of the receipt of such notice, an explanation of the 
violation and a plan for the satisfactory correction and prevention of recurrence thereof, 
including specific required actions, shall be submitted by the alleged violator to the City 
Manager.  If the alleged violator denies that any violation occurred, or contends that no 
corrective action is necessary, an explanation of the basis of any such denial or contention shall 
be submitted to the City Manager within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of the notice. 

 
(b) Submission of an explanation or plan in no way relieves the alleged violator of liability 

for any violations of this Chapter or any state or federal regulation occurring before or after 
receipt of the NOV. 

(c) Nothing in this section shall limit the authority of the City Manager to take any action, 
including emergency action or any other enforcement action, without first issuing a NOV.  
 
Sec. 25-300. Consent orders. 
 

The City Manager may enter into Consent Orders, assurances of voluntary compliance, or 
other written agreements with the owner and/or operator for noncompliance with any provision 
in this chapter or any order issued hereunder.  Such agreements may include specific action to be 
taken to correct the noncompliance within a time period specified by the agreement.  Such 
agreements shall have the same force and effect as administrative orders issued pursuant to this 
chapter and shall be judicially enforceable. 
 
Sec. 25-301. Compliance order. 
 

(a)  When the City Manager finds that any person has violated, or continues to violate, any 
provision of this chapter, or any order issued hereunder, the City Manager may issue a 



Ord. 15-U               Page 19 of 23 

 

Compliance Order to the violator directing that the violator come into compliance with this 
chapter within a specified time limit.  Compliance Orders also may contain other requirements to 
address the noncompliance, including self-monitoring and implementation of best management 
practices designed to minimize the amount of pollutants discharged to the MS4 and waters of the 
U.S. 
 

(b) A Compliance Order does not relieve a person of liability for any violation, including any 
continuing violation. 
 

(c) Issuance of a Compliance Order shall not be a bar against, or a prerequisite for, any other 
action against the violator. 
 
Sec. 25-302. Remediation, abatement and restoration orders. 
 

(a) When the City Manager finds that any person has violated, or continues to violate, any 
provision of this chapter, or any order issued hereunder, and the City Manager has reasonable 
evidence to suspect that such a violation has adversely affected the MS4 or waters of the U.S., 
the City Manager may issue a Remediation, Abatement and Restoration Order to the violator 
directing said violator to undertake and implement any appropriate action the City Manager may 
designate to remediate or abate any adverse effects of the violation upon the MS4, and to restore 
any part of the MS4 within the City that has been harmed.  Such remediation, abatement, and 
restoration actions may include but shall not be limited to: 

 
(1) Monitoring, assessment, and evaluation of the adverse effects and determination of 

the appropriate remedial, abatement, or restoration actions; 
(2) Confinement, removal, cleanup, treatment, and disposal of any discharged or released 

pollution or contamination. 
(3) Prevention, minimization, or mitigation of any damage to the public health or the 

environment that may result from the violation; and 
(4) Restoration or replacement of City property or natural resources damaged by the 

violation. 
 
(b) The Remediation, Abatement, and Restoration Order may direct that the remediation, 

abatement, or restoration be accomplished on a specified compliance schedule and be completed 
within a specified period of time. 
 

(c) The cost for preparation, implementation, construction, and maintenance of any 
remediation, abatement, or restoration as may be ordered by the City Manager shall be borne by 
the person to whom the City Manager has issued such order. 

 
(d) An order issued under this subsection does not relieve the violator of liability for any 

violation, including any continuing violation. 
 
(e)  Issuance of an order under this subsection shall not be a bar against, or a prerequisite for, 

taking any other action against any responsible party. 
 
Sec 25-303.  Emergency cease and desist orders 



Ord. 15-U               Page 20 of 23 

 

 
(a) When the City Manager finds that any person has violated, or continues to violate, any 

provision of this chapter, or any order issued hereunder, or that the person’s past violations are 
likely to recur, and that the violation(s) has caused or contributed to an actual or threatened 
discharge to the MS4 or waters of the U.S. which reasonably appears to present an imminent or 
substantial endangerment to the health or welfare of persons or to the environment, the City 
Manager may issue an Emergency Cease and Desist Order to the violator directing said violator 
to immediately cease and desist all such violations and directing the violator to: 

 
(1) Immediately comply with all Chapter requirements; 
(2) Terminate any discharges which the City Manager determines to present an imminent 

or substantial endangerment to persons or to the environment; and 
(3) Take such appropriate preventative action as may be needed to properly address a 

continuing or threatened violation, including immediately halting operations, 
terminating the discharge or both 

 
(b) Any person to which an Emergency Cease and Desist Order has been directed, shall, 

upon receipt of such Order, immediately take action to stop or eliminate the endangering 
discharge.  In the event of said person’s failure to immediately comply voluntarily with said 
Order, the City Manager may take such action(s) as deemed necessary to prevent or minimize 
harm to the MS4 or waters of the U.S. or endangerment to persons or to the environment.  Such 
actions may include, but are not limited to, immediate termination of water supply, sewer 
connection or other municipal utility service provided to said person; to any facility owned, 
leased or operated all or in part by said person; or to any site for which said person is all or in 
part an owner or lessee. 
 

(c) The City Manager shall allow the person to whom an Emergency Cease and Desist Order 
has been issued to recommence discharges when the City Manager determines that the period of 
endangerment has passed, unless further termination proceedings are initiated against the person 
to whom the order was issued. 

 
(d) A person that is responsible, in whole or in part, for any discharge presenting imminent 

endangerment shall submit a written statement, in a form as may be acceptable to the City 
Manager, describing the causes of the harmful discharge and measures taken or to be taken 
within a timely fashion to prevent any future occurrence, to the City Manager within fourteen 
(14) calendar days of receipt of the emergency order. 
 

(e) Issuance of an Emergency Cease and Desist Order shall not be a bar against, or a 
prerequisite for, taking any other action against the violator. 
 
Sec. 25-304.  Appeals 
 

(a) Any person adversely affected by a decision under this chapter, with the exception of a 
citation, may appeal the decision to the City Manager or the City Manager’s designee within 
fifteen (15) calendar days from the date of the adverse decision.  The appeal must be in writing 
and set forth specifically why the decision should be considered for relief.   

 



Ord. 15-U               Page 21 of 23 

 

(b) The effect of any order, except for an emergency cease and desist order, shall be stayed 
pending the appeal unless the City Manager makes a written determination to the contrary.  An 
emergency cease and desist order shall not be stayed pending appeal. 

 
(c) Within fourteen (14) calendar days of the appeal, the City Manager, or designee, shall 

either (1) grant the petition and withdraw or modify the order; (2) deny the petition if there is no 
material issue of fact; or (3) schedule a hearing on the petition.  Written notice of the hearing 
shall be sent to the appellant.  At the hearing, any interested party may present evidence and 
testify.   

 
(d) After the hearing, the City Manager shall grant the petition and withdraw or modify the 

order or deny the petition.   
 
(e) The City Manager’s ruling shall be final. 

 
DIVISION 5. CRIMINAL PENALTIES 

 
Sec. 25-305.  Violations of chapter. 
 

Any person who violates a provision of this chapter or any order issued hereunder shall be 
subject to a fine as set forth in Section 1-5 of the City of Alvin Code of Ordinances.  No culpable 
mental state is required.   
 
Sec. 25-306.  Public nuisance. 
 

In addition to the enforcement processes and penalties provided, any condition caused or 
permitted to exist in violation of any of the provisions of this chapter is a threat to public health, 
safety, and welfare, and is declared and deemed a nuisance, and may be summarily abated or 
restored at the violator’s expense, and/or a civil action to abate, enjoin, or otherwise compel the 
cessation of such nuisances may be taken. 
 
Sec. 25-307.  Remedies not exclusive.   
 

The remedies listed in this chapter are not exclusive of any other remedies available under 
any applicable federal, state, or local law. 
 

 
DIVISION 6.  FEES 

 
Sec. 25-308.  Fees 
 

(a) The City may adopt reasonable fees for reimbursement of costs of implementing this 
chapter, which costs may include, but not limited to, the following: 

 
(1) Fees for monitoring, inspection, and surveillance procedures, including the cost of 

collecting and analyzing discharges and reviewing monitoring reports submitted by 
dischargers;  



Ord. 15-U               Page 22 of 23 

 

(2) Fees for issuance of permits; 
(3) Fees for review of notices and plans for construction, termination of construction, and 

storm water pollution prevention control, irrespective of any acceptance or rejection 
of such notices or plans by the City Manager; 

(4) Fees for conduct of site inspections by the City when requested by an operator of a 
site or facility, irrespective of whether such inspection is required by this chapter; 

(5) Fees for site inspection by the City pursuant to determination of compliance to 
conditions of a conditional notice of termination of construction; 

(6) Fees for responding to spills and releases of oil, hazardous and extremely hazardous 
substances, and other pollutants; and 

(7) Other fees as the City may deem necessary to carry out the requirements contained in 
this chapter. 

 
(b) The fees shall be those set forth in Chapter 28 of this code. 

 
(c) The storm water permit fees and the fees for spills relate solely to the matters covered by 

this chapter and are separate from all other fees, fines, and penalties chargeable by the City. 
 
Section 2. Penalty.  Any person, firm or corporation violating a provision of this chapter 
shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction shall be subject to a fine in accordance 
with Section 1-5 of this chapter of the Code of Ordinances. 
 
Section 3. Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held  
unconstitutional, illegal, invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons 
thereof ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or 
ineffectiveness of such section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining 
portion or portions thereof; but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and 
remain in full force and effect and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be 
severable.  
 
Section 4. Publication.  The City Clerk of the City of Alvin is hereby directed to publish 
this ordinance, or its caption and penalty clause, in one issue of the official City newspaper as 
required by the Charter of the City of Alvin, Texas. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 
passage and publication in accordance with the provisions of Chapt. 52, Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code 
and the City of Alvin Charter. 
 
Section 6. Open Meetings Act.   It is hereby officially found and determined that the 
meeting at which this ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public 
notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, Tex. Gov’t Code. 
 
 
PASSED on the first reading on the _______ day of ______________________________, 2015. 
 
 



Ord. 15-U               Page 23 of 23 

 

PASSED on the second and final reading on the ______day of _____________________, 2015. 
 
 
ATTEST:      CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 
 
 
 
By: ________________________________  By: ________________________________ 

        Dixie Roberts, City Clerk           Paul A. Horn, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Contractor Agreement Language 
 
I hereby acknowledge that I am aware of the storm water management program and standard operating 
procedures developed by (entity name) in compliance with the TPDES General Permit No. TXR040000.  
I agree to comply with all applicable best management practices and standard operating procedures while 
conducting my services for (entity name).  I agree to conduct all services in a manner that does not 
introduce illicit discharges of pollutants to streets, storm water inlets, drainage ditches or any portion of 
the drainage system. The following materials and/or pollutant sources must not be discharged to the 
drainage system as a result of any services provided:  
 

1. Grass clippings, leaves, mulch, rocks, sand, dirt or other waste materials resulting from 
landscaping activities, (except those materials resulting from ditch mowing or maintenance 
activities) 

2. Herbicides, pesticides and/or fertilizers, (except those intended for aquatic use) 
3. Detergents, fuels, solvents, oils and/or lubricants, other equipment and/or vehicle fluids, 
4. Other hazardous materials including paints, thinners, chemicals or related waste materials, 
5. Uncontrolled dewatering discharges, equipment and/or vehicle wash waters, 
6. Sanitary waste, trash, debris, or other waste products 
7. Wastewater from wet saw machinery, 
8. Other pollutants that degrade water quality or pose a threat to human health or the environment. 

 
Furthermore, I agree to notify (entity name) immediately of any issue caused by or identified by 
(contractor name) that is believed to be an immediate threat to human health or the environment.  



De
 
Ag

 

Typ

 
Sum
con
Thi
$35
con
On 
visi
spec
Airp
qua
the 
Dyc
Wat
 

 

 
 
Sup

Fu

Bu

Ac

Le

 

epartment:

genda Item

pe of Item:

mmary:   T
ntract with C
s bid proce

5,889.00 and
nducted on 8

8/25, staff c
its, Comfort
cializing on
port and the

ality custome
following fa

che Lane, L
ter Treatmen

pporting d
 Compar
 Comfort
 Contrac

 

unding Exp

udgeted Ite

ccount Num

egal Review

: Parks &

m:   Consid
Ventin
city fa
renewa

  ☐Ordinance

The current H
Clear the Ai
ess generated
d Comfort S
/4/2015 with
conducted a
t Systems U

nly in comm
e City of Ho
er service an
acilities cov

Library, Seni
nt Plant, Fire

ocuments
rison Chart 
t Systems U
t 

pected: R

em: Yes ☒

mber: 
Dep
Mai

w Required

Age

& Recreation

der award o
ng and Air C
acilities, and
als; and auth

e 1st Reading ☐

Heating Ven
ir expires 10
d submittals
Systems US
h all bids be
a site visit to
USA has sh

mercial HVA
ouston.  The
nd needed te
ered in this 
ior Center, M
e Station 1, 2

:  

SA (South C

Revenue ☐

☒  No ☐

partmental B
intenance Ac

d: N/A ☐

enda 

Meetin

n 

of bid to C
Conditioning
d approve a
horize the Ci

☐ Ordinance 

nting and Ai
0/9/2015 and
s from Van
A South Ce
ing due by 2

o Dr. Cool &
hown to be

AC with refe
y possess th
echnicial exp
contract: Ci
Museum, A
2, 3, EMS St

Central) Inc.

☐  Expen

☐  N/A

uilding/Grou
ccounts 

  Requ

 

 Com
 

ng Date:   9

Contac

Comfort Sys
g (HVAC) p
(1) one year
ty Manager 

2nd Reading ☐

ir Conditioni
d was made

nderford Air
entral $32,4
2:00 p.m. on
& Professor 
e the best v
erences such
he qualified 
pertise to th
ty Hall, Pub

Alvin Conven
tation and th

 

bid packet

nditure ☒

☐

unds 

uired ☒

mmen

9/17/2015 

ct: Dan K

tems USA 
preventative 
ar contract, w

to sign.  

☐Resolution ☐

ing (HVAC)
e available f
r Inc. $58,5
440.92.  A w
n 8/18/2015 

Heat and C
value bidder
h as Bush In
workforce a

he City of A
blic Services
ntion and V
he Police De

 N/A ☐

Amount 

Date Com

ntary

Kelinske, Par

(South Cen
maintenanc

with (3) thre

☐ Public Hearin

) preventativ
for public b

559.00, Dr. 
walk thru o
and opened 

Comfort Sys
r as they a
nternatinal A
and manage

Alvin for HV
s Facility, Pu

Visitor’s Bur
epartment. 

 
 
 

☐

$32,440.92 

mpleted 

y 

rks & Rec Di

ntral) Inc., 
ce and repair
ee optional 

ng ☒ Discussio

ve maintena
id beginning
Cool & Pro

of all City f
at 2:15 p.m

stems USA. 
are a nation
Airport, Hou
ment structu

VAC equipm
ublic Service
reau/Train D

9/3/2015 

irector 

for Heating
r services o
(1) one year

on & Direction

ance & repai
g 7/20/2015
ofessor Hea
facilities wa

m. on 8/18/15
 Upon these

nal company
uston Hobby
ure to ensure

ment found in
es Facility a

Depot, Waste

g, 
f 
r 

r 
5.  
at 
s 

5.  
e 
y 
y 
e 
n 
at 
e 



Re

 
 

Re
Re

 

 

ecommend

eviewed by De
eviewed by Ci

dation:   M
A
th

epartment He
ity Attorney, if

Move to awar
greement Fo

he City Mana

ead, if applica
f applicable ☒

rd a bid to C
or HVAC P
ager to sign.

able ☒ 
☒ 

omfort Syste
reventive M

 Revie
 Revie

ems USA (S
Maintenance 

ewed by Chie
ewed by City 

South Centra
and Repair 

ef Financial O
Manager ☒ 

al) Inc., and 
Services an

fficer, if applic

approve the 
nd authorize 

cable ☒ 



Location No. Address

Preventative 

Maintenance 

Service Price

Number of services 

per year

Annual 

Maintenance 

Service Price Location No. Address

Preventative 

Maintenance 

Service Price

Number of 

services per year

Annual 

Maintenance 

Service Price Location No. Name Address

Preventative Maintenance 

Service Price

Number of 

services per year

Annual Maintenance 

Service Price

1 216 W. Sealy St 969.75$                 4 3,879.00$              1 216 W. Sealy St 1,441.00$              4 5,764.00$             1 City Hall 216 W. Sealy St 847.85$                               4 3,391.40$                  

2  1100 W. Highway 6 859.75$                 4 3,439.00$              2  1100 W. Highway 6 1,445.00$              4 5,780.00$             2 Public Service Facility  1100 W. Highway 6 1,052.31$                            4 4,209.24$                  

3 800 Dyche Lane 193.00$                 4 772.00$                 3 800 Dyche Lane 277.00$                 4 1,108.00$             3 Public Service Facility #2 800 Dyche Lane 112.38$                               4 449.52$                     

4 105 S. Gordon St. 1,093.75$              4 4,375.00$              4 105 S. Gordon St. 1,469.00$              4 5,876.00$             4 Library 105 S. Gordon St. 893.31$                               4 3,573.24$                  

5 309 W. Sealy St. 1,093.75$              4 4,375.00$              5 309 W. Sealy St. 1,845.00$              4 7,380.00$             5 Senior Center 309 W. Sealy St. 1,215.23$                            4 4,860.92$                  

6 300 W. Sealy St. 204.75$                 4 819.00$                 6 300 W. Sealy St. 353.00$                 4 1,412.00$             6 Museum 300 W. Sealy St. 196.38$                               4 785.52$                     

7 200 Depot Cntr Blvd 265.50$                 4 1,062.00$              7 200 Depot Cntr Blvd 414.00$                 4 1,656.00$             7 ACVB Office Bldg/Train Depot 200 Depot Cntr Blvd 241.62$                               4 966.48$                     

8 7100 S. CR 160 479.50$                 4 1,918.00$              8 7100 S. CR 160 475.00$                 4 1,900.00$             8 WWTP 7100 S. CR 160 294.46$                               4 1,177.84$                  

9 302 W. House St. 391.50$                 4 1,566.00$              9 302 W. House St. 594.00$                 4 2,376.00$             9 Fire Station #1 302 W. House St. 432.92$                               4 1,731.68$                  

10 110 Medic Ln. 131.25$                 4 525.00$                 10 110 Medic Ln. 297.00$                 4 1,188.00$             10 Fire Station #2 110 Medic Ln. 271.85$                               4 1,087.40$                  

11 2700 FM 1462 387.25$                 4 1,549.00$              11 2700 FM 1462 564.00$                 4 2,256.00$             11 Fire Station #3 2700 FM 1462 370.38$                               4 1,481.52$                  

12 709 E. Houst St. 405.50$                 4 1,622.00$              12 709 E. Houst St. 697.00$                 4 2,788.00$             12 EMS Station 709 E. Houst St. 425.54$                               4 1,702.16$                  

13 1500 S. Gordon St. 1,468.75$              4 5,875.00$              13 1500 S. Gordon St. 2,000.00$              4 8,000.00$             13 APD Air Handler & Fan Maintenance 1500 S. Gordon St. 1,122.50$                            4 4,490.00$                  

272.00$                 4 1,088.00$              1,000.00$              4 4,000.00$             APD Packaged Chiller Maintenance Qtrly 187.00$                               4 748.00$                     

956.00$                 1 956.00$                 1,500.00$              1 1,500.00$             APD Packaged Chiller Maintenance Annual 1,498.00$                            1 1,498.00$                  

APD Pneumatic Control System Qtrly 254.00$                 4 1,016.00$              APD Pneumatic Control System Qtrly 1,000.00$              4 4,000.00$             APD Pneumatic Control System Qtrly 30.00$                                 4 120.00$                     

APD Pneumatic Control System Annual 436.00$                 1 436.00$                 APD Pneumatic Control System Annual 1,250.00$              1 1,250.00$             APD Pneumatic Control System Annual 60.00$                                 1 60.00$                       

APD Pump Maintenance Qtrly 97.00$                   4 388.00$                 APD Pump Maintenance Qtrly 50.00$                   4 200.00$                APD Pump Maintenance Qtrly 18.00$                                 4 72.00$                       

APD Pump Maintenance Annual 229.00$                 1 229.00$                 APD Pump Maintenance Annual 125.00$                 1 125.00$                APD Pump Maintenance Annual 36.00$                                 1 36.00$                       

35,889.00$     58,559.00$    32,440.92$        

Additional Services as requested/ Dr. Cool & Professer Heat: Additional Services as requested/Vanderford: Additional Services as requested/Comfort Systems:

Location No. Name Quoted Price Location No. Name Quoted Price Location No. Name Quoted Price

1 City Hall T&M 1 City Hall 225.00$                   1 City Hall 432.00$                                  

2 Public Service Facility T&M 2 Public Service Facility 225.00$                   2 Public Service Facility 432.00$                                  

3 Public Service Facility #2 T&M 3 Public Service Facility #2 50.00$                     3 Public Service Facility #2 432.00$                                  

4 Library T&M 4 Library 125.00$                   4 Library 432.00$                                  

5 Senior Center T&M 5 Senior Center 175.00$                   5 Senior Center 432.00$                                  

6 Museum T&M 6 Museum 50.00$                     6 Museum 432.00$                                  

7 ACVB Office Bldg/Train Depot T&M 7 ACVB Office Bldg/Train Depot no price listed 7 ACVB Office Bldg/Train Depot 432.00$                                  

8 WWTP T&M 8 WWTP no price listed 8 WWTP 432.00$                                  

9 Fire Station #1 T&M 9 Fire Station #1 25.00$                     9 Fire Station #1 432.00$                                  

10 Fire Station #2 T&M 10 Fire Station #2 10.00$                     10 Fire Station #2 432.00$                                  

11 Fire Staion #3 T&M 11 Fire Station #3 no price listed 11 Fire Station #3 432.00$                                  

12 EMS Station T&M 12 EMS Station 75.00$                     12 EMS Station 432.00$                                  

13 APD Packaged Chiller T&M 13 APD Packaged Chiller 3,000.00$               13 APD Packaged Chiller 7,430.00$                               

Labor Rate Helper Rate Trip Charge Labor Rate Helper Rate Trip Charge Labor Rate Helper Rate Trip Charge

90.00$          $25.00 $75.00 (includes first 1/2 hour labor rate) 125.00$          99.00$                         99.00$                             89.00$           n/a 76.00$                               

New replacement unit mark up % Material (parts) mark-up % New replacement unit mark up % Material (parts) mark-up % New replacement unit mark up % Material (Parts) mark-up%

35% 40% 40% $00.00 - $4.99 8 30% 30%

$5.00 - $9.99 6

$10.00 - $49.99 4

$50.00 - $99.99 2.5

$100.00 and over 1.5

* Discounts or overtime are only on labor not parts/materials

Parts Increases 1.1

Special Order $40.00

Public Service Facility

Public Service Facility #2

Library

Senior Center

Museum

Fire Station #1 

Annual Total

B-15-10 Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioning                                                                                  

Preventative Maintenance and Repair Services

APD Air Handler & Fan Maintenance

APD Packaged Chiller Maintenance Qtrly

APD Packaged Chiller Maintenance Annual

ACVB Office Bldg/Train Depot

BID SUBMITTAL #1 / Dr. Cool and Professer Heat

City Building Locations

WWTP

Name

City Hall

Fire Station #2

Fire Station #3

EMS Station 

WWTP

Fire Station #1 

Fire Station #2

Fire Station #3

Public Service Facility

Public Service Facility #2

Library

Senior Center

Museum

Annual Total

B-15-10 Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioning                                                                                                    

Preventative Maintenance and Repair Services

BID SUBMITTAL # 3/ Comfort Systems USA

City Building Locations

Annual Total

B-15-10 Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioning                                                                                             

Preventative Maintenance and Repair Services

BID SUBMITTAL # 2 / Vanderford

City Building Locations

Name

City Hall

EMS Station 

APD Air Handler & Fan Maintenance

APD Packaged Chiller Maintenance Qtrly

APD Packaged Chiller Maintenance Annual

ACVB Office Bldg/Train Depot































































































AGREEMENT FOR HVAC PREVENTATIVE  

MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR SERVICES 

 
 

THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
     § KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
COUNTY OF BRAZORIA   § 
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT FOR HEATING, VENTILATION, AND AIR CONDITIONING (HVAC) 

PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR SERVICES (the “Agreement”) is made on 

this the _______day of September, 2015 by and between the CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS, (the 

“City’) a municipal corporation of the State of Texas, situated in Brazoria County, Texas and 

Comfort Systems USA (South Central) Inc. (the “Contractor”). 

 
W I T N E S S E T H : 

 
 
WHEREAS, on or about July 20, 2015, City advertised for bids for heating, ventilation, and air 

conditioning services to provide HVAC preventative maintenance and repair services to the City 

of Alvin; and 

WHEREAS, bids were received on or about August 18, 2015 and were extensively evaluated by 

City staff; and 

WHEREAS, through such evaluation it was determined that Contractor presented the best value 

bid; and 

WHEREAS, on or about September 17, 2015, the City Council awarded a bid for HVAC 

preventative maintenance and repair services to Contractor; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to enter into an agreement with Contractor according to the terms 

stated in the Agreement; 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained 

herein City and Contractor hereby agree as follows: 

2015-16 HVAC Contract                Page 1 of 3 
 



I. 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Contractor agrees to perform the services and comply with the provisions specified in the 

Request for Bid Proposal (the “RFP”).  The RFP consists of the Notice to Bidders, Instructions to 

Bidders and Scope of Services for HVAC Preventative Maintenance and Repair Services. To the 

extent a conflict or inconsistency between or among the provisions of this agreement document, 

the RFP and/or the Bid, the documents shall control in the following order of precedence: 

(1) The Agreement for HVAC Preventative Maintenance and Repair Services; 

(2) the RFP; 

(3) Contractor’s Bid Proposal.  

As stated in the Instructions to Bidders (page 2 of 44 of RFP), the City reserves the right to 

obtain alternate pricing for repair/replacement at the discretion of the City. 

 

II.  
COMPENSATION  

 
Contractor shall perform the services required by this agreement for the fees set forth in the Bid 

Proposal and shall bill City with separate invoices for each location.  Invoices shall be submitted 

on or before the 10th day of each month for services performed in the preceding month.  Payment 

by City shall be made within 30 days of receiving the invoice(s).  Contractor shall notify City of 

any changes of address, phone number, or email within five (5) days. 

 

III. 
TERM 

 
The term of this Agreement shall commence on October 10, 2015 and shall terminate on 

September 30, 2016, unless terminated earlier in accordance within the provisions hereof.  

Renewal terms of this Agreement shall be the sole option of City and upon agreement by 

Contractor. This Agreement may be renewed for a one (1) year renewal term for a maximum of 

three (3) renewal terms. Renewal terms will begin October 1 and end September 30, 

corresponding with the City’s fiscal year. The City of Alvin may cancel this agreement without 

cause upon thirty (30) days advance written notice to Contractor. 

 

2015-16 HVAC Contract                Page 2 of 3 
 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have made and executed this Agreement For HVAC 

Preventative Maintenance and Repair Services in multiple copies, each of which shall be 

considered an original, as of this _______ day of ____________________________, 2015. 

 
 
CONTRACTOR:     CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS  
 
 
By: ______________________________  By: _____________________________ 
Name:        Paul A. Horn 
Title:        Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST/SEAL     ATTEST/SEAL 
 
 
By: ______________________________  By: _____________________________ 
Name:        Dixie Roberts 
Title:        City Clerk 

2015-16 HVAC Contract                Page 3 of 3 
 



De
 
Ag

 

Typ

 
Sum
of A
loca
and
Thi
 

 

 
 
Sup

 
Re

 
 

Re
Re

 

Fu

Bu

Ac

Le

 

 

epartment:

genda Item

pe of Item:

mmary:   T
Alvin with 
ations within

d monitor the
s agreement

pporting d
 Interloca

 

ecommend

eviewed by De
eviewed by Ci

unding Exp

udgeted Ite

ccount Num

egal Review

: Public 

m:   Consid
Project

  ☐Ordinance

The proposed
equipment a
n the city lim
e expenditur
t has been ap

ocuments
al Agreemen

dation:   Ap
Im

epartment He
ity Attorney, if

pected: R

em: Yes ☒

mber: 312

w Required

Age

Services 

der Interloca
t; and author

e 1st Reading ☐

d Interlocal 
and manpow
mits of Alvin
res to ensure
pproved and 

attached: 
nt 

pprove Inte
mprovement 

ead, if applica
f applicable ☒

Revenue ☐

☒  No ☐

-5501-00-90

d: N/A ☐

enda 

Meetin

al Agreemen
rize the May

☐ Ordinance 

Agreement 
wer to make
n. Staff will

e sufficient f
signed by th

 

erlocal Agr
Project; and

able ☒ 
☒ 

☐  Expen

☐  N/A

011 

  Requ

 

 Com
 

ng Date:   9

nt with Brazo
yor to sign. 

2nd Reading ☐

provides the
e improveme
l identify spe
funds are in 
he Brazoria C

 
 

reement wit
d authorize th

 Revie
 Revie

nditure ☒

☐

uired ☒

mmen

9/17/2015 

Contact:

oria County 

☐Resolution ☐

e mechanism
ents on two
ecific streets
the budget t
County Judg

th Brazoria
he Mayor to

ewed by Chie
ewed by City 

 N/A ☐

Amount 

Date Com

ntary

Brian Smit

for the FY1

☐ Public Hearin

m for the Co
o miles of a
s using the A
throughout t
ge, L.M. “M

 
 
 

a County fo
o sign. 

ef Financial O
Manager ☒ 

☐

$300,000 

mpleted 

y 

th, Public Se

16 Asphalt I

ng ☒ Discussio

ounty to prov
asphalt street
Asphalt Stre
the course o
att” Sebesta

for the FY

fficer, if applic

9/3/2015 

Page 1 of 

ervices Dir.

Improvemen

on & Direction

vide the City
ts in variou
eet Assemen
f the project
. 

16 Asphalt 

cable ☒ 

1  

t 

y 
s 

nt 
t. 











De
 
Ag

 

Typ

 
Sum
Inte
faci
resi
How
und
plac
sinc
 
For 
 
Opt
TW
and
area
due
 
Opt
is n
Com
 
Staf
 

Fu

Bu

Ac

 

epartment:

genda Item

pe of Item:

mmary:  T
ergovernmen
ilities.  Curr
istive faciliti
wever, TML
derwriting m
cing windsto
ce 10/01/200

FY16, VOS

tion #1 ($14
WIA is a resi
d commercia
a currently i
e to high-win

tion #2 ($15
not licensed b
mmissioner. 

ff is recomm

unding Exp

udgeted Ite

ccount Num

: Financ

m:   Consid
Inc. in
FY16; 

  ☐Ordinance

The City’s 
ntal Risk Po
rently, TMLI
ies; which i
LIRP has a

manager of pr
orm coverag
00.  The curr

SCO is propo

47,350) util
dual market

al property l
ncludes 14 f

nds.  Brazori

3,180.11) an
by the Texas
  

mending opti

pected: R

em: Yes ☒

mber: De

Age

e 

der Windstor
n an amount 

and authoriz

e 1st Reading ☐

current pro
ool [TMLIR
IRP only pro
includes Cit
an arrangem
rofessional li
ge.  VOSCO
rent windstor

osing 3 optio

izes the Tex
t property in
ocated with
first tier coa
a County is 

nd Option #3
s Departmen

on 1 due to t

Revenue 

☒  No ☐

ept. Acct. Nu

enda 

Meetin

rm Renewal 
not to excee
ze the City M

☐ Ordinance 

operty and 
RP]) does no
ovides wind
ty Hall, the 
ment with 
iability and 
 has written
rm policy w

ons to the Ci

xas Windsto
nsurance com
in an area d

astal countie
identified as

3 ($201,714.
nt of Insuran

the coverage

☐  Expe

☐  N/A

umbers 

 

 Com
 

ng Date:   9

Proposal op
ed $147,350
Manager to s

2nd Reading ☐

liability ins
ot provide f

dstorm cover
Alvin Mus
Victor O. 
specialty ins

n the City’s w
with VOSCO 

ity for winds

orm Insuran
mpany that p
designated b
s.  A first ti
s a first tier c

.65) consist 
nce; and, as 

e value as we

 

enditure ☒

☐

Amou

mmen

9/17/2015 

Contact:

ption #1 from
0 for the City
sign the Prop

☐Resolution ☐

surance pro
full windsto
rage through
seum, and th
Schinnerer 

surance, to s
windstorm c
expires Oct

storm and ha

nce Associa
provides win
by the Texas
er desingatio
coastal coun

of using Am
a result, is n

ell as the loc

☒  N/A

unt: $147

ntary

Junru Rola

m Victor O. 
y’s windstor
posal Accep

☐ Public Hearin

vider (Texa
orm and hai
h their Coast
he Wastewa

& Compan
serve as the C
coverage thr
tober 1, 2015

ail coverage.

ation (TWIA
nd and hail 
s Commissio
on is an are

nty.      

mRisc as the 
not regulated

cal regulatio

 
 
 

☐

7,350 

y 

and, CFO 

Schinnerer &
rm and hail 
ptance Form.

ng ☒ Discussio

as Municipa
il coverage
tal Storm Fu

ater Treatme
ny, Inc. (V
City’s insura
rough variou
5. 

.   

A) as the in
insurance fo
oner of Insu
a subject to 

insurer/carr
d by the Tex

n.     

 

Page 1 of 2

& Company
coverage for
 

on & Direction

al League –
for all City

und for wind
ent Building
VOSCO), an
ance agent in
us companie

nsurer/carrier
or residentia
urance.  Thi
castastrophe

rier.  AmRisc
xas Insurance

2  

y, 
r 

– 
y 
d 

g.  
n 
n 
s 

r.  
al 
s 
e 

c 
e 



Sup

 
Re

 
 

Re
Re

 

Le

 

pporting d
 Windsto
 Windsto
 No Win

 

ecommend

eviewed by De
eviewed by Ci

egal Review

ocuments
orm Proposa
orm Property
nd & Value C

dation:    

epartment He
ity Attorney, if

w Required

attached: 
al  
y Location S
Comparison 

ead, if applica
f applicable ☒

d: N/A 

   

Schedule – T
Schedule 

able ☒ 
☒ 

☐ 

TWIA 

 Revie
 Revie

 Require

ewed by Chie
ewed by City 

ed ☒  

ef Financial O
Manager ☒ 

Date Comp

fficer, if applic

pleted: 9

Page 2 of 2

cable ☒ 

9/1/2015 

2  




















	Council Agenda 09.17.15
	APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	CC Min 08/27/15 Special Meeting
	CC Min 09/03/15 Workshop
	CC Min 09/03/15 Regular Meeting

	BOARDS & COMMISSIONS
	BBOAA Minutes 

	CONSENT AGENDA
	Street Closure Request; Alvin Fire Dept.
	AVFD Street Closure Request Map

	Street Closure Request; Alvin High School
	Map of Parade Route

	Street Closure Request; Blue Santa
	Blue Santa Fundraiser Event Map


	OTHER BUSINESS
	Ord 15-N; No Parking; Stadium Drive; 2nd Reading
	Ordinance 15-N; 2nd Reading
	Exhibit 1; Stadium Drive Map

	Ord 15-U; Amending Chap 25; Stormwater; 1st Reading
	Ordinance 15-U; 1st Reading
	Contractor Agreement

	Bid Award and Contract; HVAC Maintenance; Comfort Systems USA
	Comparison Chart
	Comfort Systems USA Bid Packet
	Contract

	Brazoria County Interlocal; FY 16 Asphalt Improvements
	Interlocal Agreement

	Windstorm Renewal; Victor O. Schinnerer
	Windstorm Proposal
	Windstorm Property Location Schedule - TWIA
	No Wind & Value Comparison Schedule





